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ABOUT
THE COMPANY

Who Global Surfaces Ltd is a world-renowned company of
s Indian origin, a leading reference in the mining,

we Are L] production, and export of natural stones and engineered
quartz. A critical contributor to the worldwide stone

industry, the company has expanded its horizon from

stones to multi-dimensional business and emerged with a

new identity— Global Surfaces Ltd.
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OUR
JOURNEY

Born as Global Stones in 2004 in Jaipur, Rajasthan, Global
Surfaces Ltd has grown progressively and created new
avenues of growth in the international markets under the

guidance of visionary Director Mr.Mayank Shah.
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Our Journey

The Beginning of a new Chapter
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2005

Challenging Year

New Exploration

2011

Global Mining

2015 (

State of the Art Plant Upgradation




2017

Inception of Global Quartz

2018

2020

Go Green

2021

Global Surfaces Limited

2022
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Initial Public Offering (IPO)

An important milestone in the history of any
company is when it is listed on stock exchanges.
We, Global Surfaces Limited, successfully
launched our IPO and gotlisted on March 23,2023
on the stock exchanges in India.
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We offer awide range of products and stones like - granite,
marble, soft quartzite, soapstone and phyllite in slab and
countertops customized according to different sizes,
shapes, forms, and colours.Our experience in the stone
industry and positioning as a global leader in the natural
stone industry has inspired us to revolutionized quartzinto
breath-taking surfaces.
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Completely stylish

CALCATTA COLARADO
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Persistence cagerness to take action & confronting
obstacles whilst not being deterred has helped us reach

where we are today

Engineered Quartz

Stratum | Prismatic | Kalmasa
Aurora | Lampros | Quartzites

Gloss Silken Velvette
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STRENGTHENING OUR

MARKET REACH

Over the past two decades, we have been
successful in building a strong brand name and
recall in the market. To further strengthen our
reach, we continue take active participation in
exhibits and trade events.

= SURFACES
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OUR
INFRASTRUCTURE

Global Surfaces Ltd isa leading granite/marble and quartz
company globally acclaimed for maintaining consistent
international standard quality from the beginning of the
process until the end. Our cutting-edgetechnologies and
state-of-the-art facility are the mostimportant variables that
define how Global Surfaces Ltd manufacture the exquisite

world-classrange of products.

11 )



s

OUR

PURPOSE, VALUES

& GOALS

Our primary focus at Global Surfaces Ltd would always
be a satisfied customer experiences. We try to
understand our customers’ needs like our own and
deliver nothing but the best while customizing products
to their needs.We have embraced sustainability as an
opportunity. We support the efforts to keep our natural
resources and minerals thriving while innovating and
working on better ways to manufacture our products
more sustainably.
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Financial

highlight
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Dear Shareholders,

tis a proud moment for meto present the first

annual report ofthe Company following the

initial public offer during the last financial year. 1
am grateful that you invested in our public offering,
and I am confident that it will be a decision you will
cherish.

The Company performed well during the last year;
its financial performance continued to protect the
integrity of the Balance Sheet while the year-end
order book indicates we are headed for another
growthyear.

In terms of our quartz business performance, during
the fiscal, I am pleased that we have significantly
grown inthe Global market. This is attributable to
our brand building exercise and continuous efforts
in establishing our reach. Besides our endeavors in
India, for our internationalmarkets, we carried out
periodic participation in international exhibitions
and trade shows to amplify our brand visibility and
strengthen our customer connect.This year we
signed an agreement to create a subsidiary in USA in
name of Superior surfaces Inc which will distribute
& retail our engineered quartz products in USA.

Talking about the segment wise performance, in our
Quartz business we introduced new products, which
also witnessed an encouraging response from
customers. Our existing products also continued to

perform well. We are continually directing our efforts in ramping up operations at New Quartz unitat Jafza, Dubai. Due to high competitive environment

& scarcity of premium raw materials Our natural stone business could not perform as per expectations. Our profitability was impacted significantly for

the Natural stone business. We therefore currently are directing our efforts towards preserving our margins and notching up better figures for our

natural stone segment.

We are driven by amindful approach, and we choose to do what bestserves our people, our customers and business outcomes.

As we look ahead to the future, we are optimistic and excited about the tremendous opportunity that awaits us. I would like to express my gratitude to

our customers for their continued faith and trust. I am also grateful to our Board of Directors, our shareholders, and all other stakeholders for their

wishesand support.
Letme close by wishingall of you good health and happiness.
With Warm Regards

Mayank Shah

Chairman and Managing Director
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Corporate

Mayank Shah
Chairman & Managing Director

Sweta Shah
Executive Director

Dinesh Kumar Govil
Independent Director

Yashwant Kumar Sharma
Independent Director

Sudhir Baxi
Independent Director

Ashish Kumar Kachawa
Non-Executive Director

M/s.BKhosla & Co.
Chartered Accountants, Jaipur

M/s.Vimal Guptaand Associates
Practising Company Secretary, Jaipur

Mr. Rajesh Gattani*

Mr. Aseem Sehgal

FootNotes:

Corporate Overview

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

Scrip code: 543829

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Symbol: GSLSU

M/s.Bigshare Services Private Limited
S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park,
Nextto Ahura, Centre, Mahakali Caves Road,
Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 093,
Maharashtra, India

HDFC Bank Limited, Jaipur

H} HDFC BANK

Kotak Mahindra Bank
kotak

Esteh Mapinika St

PA-10-006 Engineeringand Related Indus
SEZ,Mahindra World City

Teh- Sanganer, Jaipur R] 302037 IN
Tel:0141-7191000

Website: www.globalsurfaces.in

Email ID: info@globalsurfaces.in

CIN:L14100RJ1991PLC073860

E-40to G-47,RIICO Industrial Area,
Bagru Extn. Bagru-303007, Jaipur, Rajasthan
Telephone: 0141-2984024

PA-10-006 Engineering and Related Indus
SEZ, Mahindra World City

Teh- Sanganer, Jaipur R] 302037 IN
Tel:0141-7191000

* Mr. Rajesh Gattani ceased to be Chief Financial Officer of the Company pursuant to his resignation w.e.f.July 04,2023.
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CSR

Highlights

At Global Surfaces Limited, we strongly believe that sustainable business growth is intertwined with the well-being of the societies and natural
ecosystems where we operate. Our commitment to the philosophy of ‘Caring for Life’ extends to our social endeavors, evidenced by the strategic, long-
term partnerships that we forge to actively engage with communities and to maximize positive outcomes. Our efforts are targeted at making meaningful
contributions to society and empowering vulnerable communities, in ways that they need to be supported the most.

Corporate
Social

Responsibility

Contributing to community health and well-being is important to us. We are committed to providing to the targeted communities comprehensive
support through response, recovery, and rehabilitation efforts. Our focus lies in ensuring equitable access to healthcare services, to the targeted
communities. In this view the company has carried out following activities for promoting healthcare and safety.
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INSTALLATION OF

SANITARY NAPKIN VENDING MACHINE

The Company Installed Sanitary Napkin Vending
Machine at the Jaipur Chapter of Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

DONATION OF
MEDICAL EQUIPMENTS AND ACCESSORIES

The Company Supplied medical equipments, RO
Surgical Equipments and associated accessories at
SMS Hospital, Jaipur.

DONATION OF BLANKETS

The Company supplied Blankets, Bedsheets
and uniforms for nursing staff and doctors at
SMS Hospital, Jaipur
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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members of Global Surfaces Limited

Statutory Reports

Your directors are pleased to present the 32nd Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together with the audited standalone &

consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended on March 31,2023 is summarized below:

(X In Millions)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Total Income from Operations 1,770.30 1,893.71 1,780.66 1,903.13
Net Profit/(Loss)for the period (Before Tax, 260.38 358.58 25291 361.06
Exceptional and/or Extraordinary Items)
Net Profit/(Loss)for the period Before Tax 260.38 358.58 25291 361.06
(After Exceptional and/or Extraordinary Items)
Net Profit/(Loss)for the period After Tax 250.74 354.60 242.34 356.34
(After Exceptional and/or Extraordinary Items)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 251.05 355.34 257.13 357.26
[Comprising Profit/(Loss)for the period (After Tax) and
Other Comprehensive Income (After Tax)]
Equity Share Capital 423.82 338.62 423.82 338.62
Other Equity [Reserves (Excluding Revaluation Reserve)] 2,179.41 997.78 2,189.48 1,001.72
Earnings Per Share (0£%10.00 each)
(For continuing and discontinued operations):
Basic: 7.34 10.47 7.10 10.52
Diluted: 7.34 10.47 7.10 10.52

2. STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND PERFORMANCE

The Financial Year 2022-23 was one of the significant years as we
achieved a major milestone during the year by going public. Further
information on the Business overview and outlook and State of the
affairs of the Company is discussed in detail in the Management
Discussion & Analysis Report.

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company for the
year under review.

Revenue and Profit (Standalone)

Your Company’s total income during the year under review
amounting to %1,770.30 Mn. as compared to %1,893.71 Mn. in
previous financial year and net Profit After Tax (PAT) amounting to
X250.74 Mn. as compared to ¥354.60 Mn. in previous year recording
adecrease of 29.29 % in 2022-23. During the financial year decrease
inthe Profitafter Tax (PAT) is due to increase in raw material prices.

Revenue and Profit (Consolidated)

The total income during the year under review amounting to
X1,780.66 Mn. as compared to ¥1903.13 Mn. in previous financial
year and net Profit After Tax (PAT) amounting to ¥242.34 Mn. as
compared to X356.34 Mn. in previous year recording a decrease of
31.99% in 2022-23. During the financial year decrease in the Profit
after Tax (PAT) is due to increase in raw material prices.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors aim to grow the business lines of the Company
and enhance the rate of return on investments of the shareholders.
With a view to financing the long-term growth plans of the Company
that requires substantial resources, the Board of Directors did not
recommend any dividend for the year under review.

4. TRANSFERTO RESERVES

Your Board doesn’t propose to transfer any amount to General
Reserve for the financial year ended on March 31,2023.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING (IPO)

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023 the Company had
made an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of 1,10,70,000 equity shares of
%10.00 each at a price 0f X140 per share (including a Share premium
of ¥130) comprising of a fresh issue of 85,20,000 equity shares and
an Offer for Sale (OFS) of 25,50,000 equity shares by selling
shareholders. Total Proceeds received by the Company pursuant to
the IPO aggregates to X119.28 Crores by way of fresh issue of equity
shares to the public.

The Offer was subscribed to the extent of 12.21 times (excluding the
Anchor Investor Portion) as per the bid books of NSE and BSE after
removing all rejections. The Board remains grateful to all investors
for their overwhelmingresponse to the [PO.

The shares of the Company have been listed on BSE Limited (BSE)
and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) w.e.f. March
23, 2023. The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in
dematerialized form.

Asof March 31,2023, 100% Shares of the Company are held in demat
form.

The listing fees for the year 2023-24 have been paid to both BSE as
wellas NSE.

CHANGE IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Authorized Share Capital

There was no change in the authorized share capital of the Company
during the year under review.
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The current Authorized Share Capital of the Company is
346,00,00,000 (Rupees Forty-Six Crores Only) divided into
4,60,00,000 (Four Crore Sixty Lakhs) Equity Shares of 310 (Rupees
Ten) each.

Paid Up and Subscribed Share Capital

Company had made the Initial Public offer of equity shares
comprising of Fresh issue and offer for sale of Equity Shares. After the
completion of the initial public offer the post-paid up equity share
capital of the Company increased from X 33,86,18,180 (Thirty-three
crore eighty-six lakhs eighteen thousand one hundred and eighty)
Consisting of 3,38,61,818 (Three Crore thirty-eight lakhs sixty-one
thousand eight hundred and eighteen only) Equity shares ofX10 each
to 342,38,18,180 (Rupees Forty-Two Crores thirty-eight lakhs
eighteen thousand one hundred and eighty only) consisting of
4,23,81,818 (Four Crore twenty-three lakhs eighty-one thousand
eighthundred and eighteen only) Equity Shares of 310 each.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Your Company along with the following Wholly Owned Subsidiary
and Subsidiary of the Company is engaged in the business of
processing of natural stones and manufacturing engineered quartz,
notonlyin the country butalso across the globe:

Global Surfaces FZE-Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Global Surfaces Inc. (USA)-Subsidiary

Superior Surfaces Inc. was incorporated on May 05, 2023 in State of
Texas, USA. Its main activity is distribution of artificial stones
including engineering quartz.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act), the Company has prepared Consolidated Financial
Statements which forms part of this Annual Report. A separate
statement containing salient features of the financial statements of
the Company’s Subsidiaries in prescribed form AOC-1 is annexed as
Annexure-I to this report. The audited financial statements including
the consolidated financial statements of the Company and all other
documents required to be attached thereto is available on the
Company’s website i.e.,, www.globalsurfaces.in The financial
statements of the Subsidiary Companies is available on the
Company’s website i.e. www.globalsurfaces.in These documents will
also be available for inspection on all working days, during business
hours, at the Registered Office of the Company. The Company is
already having a policy for determining material subsidiaries and the
same is available on Company’s website at the web linki.e.,
https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-content/uploads/documents/Company-
Policies/Policy%20for%20determining%20material%20subsidiary.pdf
There was no Company which has ceased to be Company’s
Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company during the financial
year ended on March 31, 2023.

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS

In pursuance to section 134(3)(L) of the Act, no material changes and
commitments have occurred after the closure of the financial year to
which the financial statements relate till the date of this report,
affecting the financial position of the Company.

MATERIAL ORDERS

In pursuance to Rule 8 (5) (vii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, no significant or material orders were passed by the regulators
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and
Company’s operations in future.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT
Pursuant to the provisions of section 186 of the Act and Schedule V of
the Regulations, investments made are provided as part of the
financial statements. There are no loans granted, guarantees given or
issued or securities provided by your Company in terms of section
186 of the Act, read with the rulesissued there under.

DEVIATION(S) OR VARIATION(S) IN THE USE OF PROCEEDS OF

12.

13.

14.

INITIAL PUBLICISSUE (IPO), IF ANY

There were no instances of deviation(s) or variation(s) in the
utilization of proceeds of IPO as mentioned in the objects of Offer in
the Prospectus dated March 16, 2023, in respect of the IPO of the
Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Global has historically adopted the practice of undertaking related
party transactions only in the ordinary and normal course of
business and at arm’s length as part of its philosophy of adhering to
highest ethical standards, transparency and accountability. Pursuant
to the provisions of Section 188 of the Actread with rulesissued there
under and Regulation 23 of the listing regulations, all contracts /
transactions /arrangements entered by the Company during the
financial year with the related parties were in ordinary course of
businessand onan arm’slength basis.

During the financial year 2022-23, all transactions with related
parties were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. Prior
omnibus approval of the Audit Committee has been obtained for the
transactions which are of repetitive nature. The transactions entered
into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted along with a
statement giving details of all related party transactions was placed
before the Audit Committee on quarterly basis, specifying the nature,
value and terms and conditions of the same. The Company has made
transactions with related parties pursuant to section 188 of the Act.
The particulars of material contracts or arrangements with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act in the
Form AOC-2 is annexed herewith as Annexure ‘II".

The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of related party
transactions and also on dealing with related party transactions
which hasbeen uploaded on the Company’s website at the web link

https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-content/uploads/documents/Company-
Policies/Policy%200n%20Dealing%20with%20Related%20Party%20Transactions.pdf

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The details of Board and Committee meetings held during the
financial year ended on March 31, 2023 are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report which forms part of this report. The gap between
two consecutive meetings was held within the time period stipulated
under the Act, Secretarial Standard-1 and the listing regulations.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Directors

Your Company has an optimum combination of executive as well as
non-executive Directors in compliance with Regulation 17 of the
Listing Regulations as amended from time to time.

Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31,2023:

Name Designation Category

Mr.Mayank Shah Chairmanand Executive Director
Managing Director

Mrs. Sweta Shah Director Executive Director

Mr. Ashish Kumar Kachawa Director Non-Executive
Director

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil Director Independent
Director

Mr. Yashwant Kumar Director Independent

Sharma Director

Mr. Sudhir Baxi Director Independent
Director

Key Managerial Personnel

Name Designation

Mr. Mayank Shah Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Rajesh Gattani ChiefFinancial Officer

Mr. Aseem Sehgal Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer
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Changes during the period under review:

During the year under review, the following changes occurred in the
Board of Directors:

In accordance with the provisions of the Section 152 of the Act and
the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Ashish Kumar
Kachawa, Non-Executive Director of the Company is liable to retire by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being
eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

Mr. Mayank Shah was appointed as Chairman and Managing Director
with effect from March 02, 2019 and it is proposed to re-appoint him
as Chairman and Managing Director at ensuing AGM for a period of 5
(Five) years commencing from March 01,2024.

Necessary resolutions for the appointment/re-appointment of
aforesaid Directors, wherever applicable, have been incorporated in
the notice convening the ensuing AGM. As required under the listing
regulations and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings issued by
ICSI, the relevant details of Directors retiring by rotation and/or
seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing AGM are
furnished as Annexure ‘A’ to the notice of AGM.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Rajesh Gattani, resigned from the position of Chief Financial
Officer of the Company with effect from close of business hours of July
04,2023.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of section 149(7) of the Act and
Regulation 25 of the listing regulations all Independent Directors of
the Company have given declaration that they meet the criteria of
independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation
16(1) (b) of Listing Regulations and also affirmed compliance
regarding online registration with the ‘Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs’ (IICA) for inclusion of name in the databank of Independent
Directors. With regard to proficiency of the Independent Directors,
ascertained from the online proficiency self-assessment test
conducted by the Institute, as notified under sub-section (1) of
section 150 of the Act, the Board of Directors have taken on record the
declarations submitted by Independent Directors that they are
exempt from appearing in the test or they have passed the exam as
required by the institute.

The terms & conditions for the appointment of Independent
Directors are given on the website of the Company.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In compliance with the requirements of the Act and the listing
regulations, the Company has put in place a familiarization
programme for the Independent Directors to familiarize them with
their role, rights, and responsibility as Directors, the working of the
Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates,
business model etc. All new Independent Directors inducted into the
Board attend an orientation program which enables them to
augment their knowledge & skills, so that they can discharge their
responsibilities effectively and efficiently. The details of such
familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors are
posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at

https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-
content/uploads/documents/Company-
Policies/Details%200f%20familarization%20programme.pdf

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

Performance evaluation is becoming increasingly important for
Board and Directors and has benefits for individual Directors, Board
and the Companies for which they work.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India has issued a Guidance
Note on Board Evaluation and pursuant to the provisions of the Act,
the Board of Directors has carried out an annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees and individual
Directors.

18.
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The performance evaluation of the Board was based on criteria such
as composition and role of the Board, Board communication and
relationships, functioning of Board Committees of Board processes,
manner of conducting the meetings, review of performance of
Executive Directors, value addition of the Board members and
corporate governance, succession planning, strategic planning etc.

Evaluation of Committees was based on criteria such as adequate
independence of each Committee, manner of conducting the
meetings, frequency of meetings and time allocated for discussions at
meetings, functioning of Board Committees, value additions made by
the members of the committees and effectiveness of its
advice/recommendation to the Board, etc.

Evaluation of Directors was based on criteria such as participation
and contribution in Board and Committee meetings, representation
of shareholder interest and enhancing shareholder value, experience
and expertise to provide feedback and guidance to top management
on business strategy, governance, risk and understanding of the
organization’s strategy etc.

Performance evaluation of every Director was done by the
Independent Directors and also by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in their meetings held on March 01, 2023
and May 29, 2023 respectively.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT
Statutory Auditor

M/s. B Khosla & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 000205C) the
Statutory Auditor of the Company were appointed at 28th Annual
General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on September 16,2019
foraperiod of five years.

Pursuant to the amendments of Section 139 of the Companies Act,
2013 by the Companies Amendment Act, 2017 notified on May 07,
2018, the requirement of ratification of Statutory Auditors by the
Members has been withdrawn and therefore, it is not required to
ratify the appointment every year.

The Auditors in their report for the financial year 2022-23 have given
unmodified opinion.

As per sub section 12 of section 143 of the Act during the financial
year, no fraud was reported by the Auditor of the Company in their
AuditReport.

The term of M/s. B Khosla & Co., Chartered Accountants, the
Statutory Auditor of the Company would expire at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company. In the Board meeting held on May
29,,2023 it is proposed to re-appoint M/s B Khosla & Co., Chartered
Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company for second term
for the period of five years commencing from April 01, 2023 to March
31, 2028 to hold office from the conclusion of 32nd AGM till the
conclusion of 37th AGM of the Company subject to the approval of
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting of the Company which
will held on Wednesday, September 20,2023.

Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Act and rules made there
under, M/s. Vimal Gupta and Associates, Company Secretaries, (FRN:
S2016R]J382000), was appointed as Secretarial Auditor to conduct
the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2022-23.
An Audit Report issued in form MR-3 by M/s. Vimal Gupta &
Associates, Company Secretaries, in respect of the Secretarial Audit of
the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, is
attached as Annexure ‘III’ to this Report. The report doesn’t contain
any reservation, qualification or adverse remark or disclaimer.

The Board has appointed M/s. Mukul Dusad & Associates (FRN:
S2019R]J707900), Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the
Company to carry out Secretarial Audit of the Company for the
financial year 2023-24.

.BOARD’S COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors of the Company constituted the following
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Committees:

a) Audit Committee

b) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
¢) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
d) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Committees’ composition, charters and meetings held during the
year and attendance there at, are given in the Report on Corporate
Governance forming part of this Annual Report.

20. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

Pursuant to the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and
amendments thereto, the Board has formulated and implemented a
Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by its
designated Persons and other connected persons and Code of
Practices and Procedures for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information. The trading window is closed during the time
of declaration of results and occurrence of any material events as per
the code. The same is available on the Company’s website at the web

linki.e.

htps://
Policies/!

21.VIGILMECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established a Whistle Blower Policy to deal with
the cases of unethical behavior in all its business activities, fraud,
mismanagement and violation of Code of Conduct of the Company.
The policy provides systematic mechanism to report the concerns
and adequate safeguards against the victimization, ifany. The policy is
available on the Company’s website at the weblinki.e.,

in/wp-content,
0for%

Company-

quiry%20in%20( "

0Leak?%200f%20UPSLpdf

https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-content/uploads/documents/Company-
Policies/Vigil%20Mechanism%20_%20Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
During the financial year, no whistle blower event was reported and
mechanism s functioning well. No personnel have been denied access
to the Audit Committee.

22.CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Company firmly believes that the commitment towards playing
a defining role in the development of its stakeholders extends to
uplifting the lives of the Marginalized segments of the society, living in
and around its areas of operation. The principles of Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) are deeply imbibed in your Company’s
corporate culture.

The Annual Report on CSR activities as required under Rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 read
with section 134(3) and 135(2) of the Act, is annexed herewith as
Annexure ‘IV’ to this report. To amplify outreach efforts, your
company has contributed a sum of ¥59,48,238 towards CSR activities
during the financial year 2022-23.

The Company has CSR Policy in place and the same can be accessed at

https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-
content/uploads/documents/Company-Policies/CSR%20Policy.pdf

RISKMANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has framed and implemented a Risk Management
Policy to identify the various business risks. This framework seeks to
create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business
objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage. The
Risk Management Policy defines the risk management approach
across the enterprise at various levels including documentation and
reporting. The policy is available on the Company’s website at the web
linki.e.,

23.

https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-content/uploads/documents/Company-
Policies/Risk%20Assessment%20and%20Management%20Policy.pdf

24.DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place “The
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013” was notified on December 09, 2013, under
the said Act, every Company is required to set up an Internal
Complaints Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual
harassmentatwork place of any women employee.

In terms of the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the
Company adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of
Women at workplace and also set up an Internal Complaints
Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at
work place of any women employee. During the financial year 2022-
23, no new complaint has been received. Hence, no complaint is
pending atthe end of the financial year.

ANNUALRETURN

Pursuant to section 92(3) read with section134(3) of the Act, the

Annual Return as on March 31, 2023 is available on the Company’s
website on

25.

https://globalsurfaces.in/annual-reports-and-annual-returns/
DEPOSITS

During the financial year under review, your Company has neither
invited nor accepted or renewed any fixed deposit in terms of
provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Act read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. No amount of principal or
interest was outstandingas on March 31,2023.

27.INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

26.

Your Company put sufficient internal financial control system
adequate with the size of its business operations. Internal control
systems comprising of policies and procedures are designed to
ensure sound management of your Company’s operations, safe
keeping of its assets, optimal utilization of resources, reliability of its
financial information and compliance. Systems and procedures are
periodically reviewed to keep pace with the growing size and
complexity of your Company’s operations.

During the financial year under review, the Statutory Auditor in their

Report on the Internal Financial Control with reference to financial
statements for the financial year 2022-23 has given unmodified
report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption,
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo pursuant to section 134 of the
Actread with rules made there under is given in Annexure ‘V’ to this
report.

. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

In line with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Company has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration
Policy. The Nomination and Remuneration policy provides
guidelines to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee relating
to the Appointment, Removal & Remuneration of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. This policy
formulates the criteria for determining qualifications competencies,
positive attributes and independence for the appointment of a
director (executive / non-executive) and also the criteria for
determining the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, Senior Managementand other Employees.

28.

2

)

Italso provides the manner for effective evaluation of performance of
Board, its committees and individual directors. The Nomination and
Remuneration Policy can be accessed on the Company’s website at

https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-content/uploads/documents/Company-
Policies/Nomination%20and%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given herein below:

SL Name of the Desi ion R ation Nature of the Qualification | Experience Date of Age Previous Whether Percentage
No. Employee (R In lakhs) employment (Inyears) |[Commencement Employment relative of equity
(contractual ofemployment ofthedirector,| sharesheld
or otherwise) ifyesname of by the
the Director employee
Inthe
Company
1 Mayank Shah Chairman 190.16 Contractual Bachelor’s 18 01.04.2016 46 Own Business Spouse of 55.46%
and Managing degreein Mrs. Sweta
Director commerce Shah
2 Sweta Shah Executive 69.60 Onroll Employee | Bachelor’s 02 11.09.2021 47 Own Business Spouse of
Director degreein Mr. Mayank 5.66%
commerce Shah
3 Sanjeev Bansal Vice President - 37.36 Onroll Employee | Bachelor’s 30 11.07.2018 56 Aro Granite No 0.00%
Marketing degreein Industries
commerce Limited
4 Rajesh Gattani* | Chief Financial 26.19 Onroll Employee | Chartered 08 07.06.2018 33 M/s.Surendra No 0.00%
Officer Accountant Gupta&
Associates
5 ArunKantDixit | General Manager 23.13 Onroll Employee | Bachelor’s 30 21.11.2007 59 Mercury No 0.00%
Production degreein Granite Private
commerce Limited
6 Rajesh Choudhary| Production 20.75 OnrollEmployee | Bachelor’s 20 01.09.2018 44 Paradigm No 0.00%
Manager degreein Granite Limited
commerce
7 ArihantJain Manager- 13.04 Onroll Employee | Masterof 05 08.03.2021 36 N.A. No 0.00%
Operations Business
Administration
8 AshishAgarwal | Accounts 10.06 Onroll Employee | Chartered 04 20.07.2021 27 SKFinance No 0.00%
Manager Accountant Limited
9 Ashutosh Pandey*| Production 10.08 OnrollEmployee | BachelorofArts 15 10.07.2018 34 Baba Quartz No 0.00%
inCharge Pvt. Ltd.
10 Ram Niranjan Exports 9.83 OnrollEmployee | Bachelor’s 19 01.04.2004 53 N.A. No 0.00%
Verma Manager degreein
commerce

* Mr. Ashutosh Pandey, Production in Charge of the Company has resigned with effect from February 17, 2023 and Mr. Rajesh Gattani, Chief Financial Officer
ofthe Company has resigned with effect from July 04,2023.

31.

32.

33.

34.

The details in terms of section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, are forming part of this report as Annexure
‘VI' to thisreport.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of
this Annual Reportand has been annexed with the Board’s Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the requirements of corporate
governance as stipulated under the listing regulations. The
corporate governance report and certificate from practicing
Company Secretary confirming compliance of conditions as required
by Regulation 34(3) read with Part E of Schedule V of the listing
regulations, form partofthe Board’s Report.

LISTING OF SHARES

Your Company’s shares are listed at BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd and the listing fees for the year has been duly
paid.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required by section 134(3)(c) of the Act, your Directors state and
confirm that:

The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudentso as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profitand loss
ofthe Company for the year ended on March 31,2023;

the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

35.

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’
basis;

the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls are
adequate and are operating effectively; and the Directors have
devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your directors place on record their deep appreciation to employees
at all levels for their hard work, dedication and commitment. The
enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the employees have enabled the
Company to provide higher levels of consumer delight through
continuous improvement in existing products and introduction of
new products.

Your Directors acknowledge wise counsel received from Statutory
and Secretarial Auditors, and are grateful for their consistent support
and cooperation.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the support and co-
operation, your Company has been receiving from its suppliers,
customers and others associates.

The Directors also take this opportunity to thank all Investors,
Clients, Banks, Government and Regulatory Authorities and Stock
Exchanges for their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Global Surfaces Limited

Mayank Shah
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 01850199

Place: Jaipur
Dated: August 14,2023
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Annexure - I

FORM AOC-1

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries or
Associate Companies or Joint Ventures

PART “A” : Subsidiaries

(R in Millions)
SL.No. 1
Name of the Subsidiary Global Surfaces Inc.
Reporting period for the Subsidiary Concerned April 01,2022 to March 31,2023
Reporting currency and exchange rate as on the last date of the USDollar ($)
relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiary INR82.2169=1USD
Share Capital 0.82
Reserves and Surplus 7.20
Total Assets 145.13
Total Liabilities 145.13
Investments Nil
Turnover 323.18
Profit Before Taxation 391
Provision for Taxation 0.95
Profit After Taxation 2.96
Proposed Dividend Nil
Extent of Shareholding (In Percentage) 99.90% (Subsidiary)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mayank Shah Sweta Shah
Place: Jaipur (Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director)
Date: May 29, 2023 (DIN: 01850199) (DIN: 06883764)
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Annexure - I

FORM AOC-1

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries or
Associate Companies or Joint Ventures

PART “A” : Subsidiaries

(R in Millions)
SL.No. 2
Name of the Subsidiary Global Surfaces FZE
Reporting period for the Subsidiary Concerned April 01,2022 to March 31,2023
Reporting currency and exchange rate as on the last date of the AED
relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiary INR22.376=1AED
Share Capital 215.37
Reserves and Surplus (0.76)
Total Assets 1757.86
Total Liabilities 1757.86
Investments Nil
Turnover Nil
Profit Before Taxation (0.76)
Provision for Taxation Nil
Profit After Taxation (0.76)
Proposed Dividend Nil
Extent of Shareholding (In Percentage) 100% (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mayank Shah Sweta Shah
Place: Jaipur (Chairman & Managing Director) (Executive Director)
Date: May 29, 2023 (DIN: 01850199) (DIN: 06883764)
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FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section
188 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:
1. Detailsof contracts orarrangements or transactions notatarm'’s length basis: Not Applicable

(a) Name(s)oftherelated party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

(c) Durationofthe contracts/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

(d) Salientterms ofthe contracts orarrangements or transactions including the value, ifany: Not Applicable

(e) Justification for enteringinto such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not Applicable

(f) Date(s) ofapproval by the Board: Not Applicable

(g) Amountpaid asadvances,ifany: Not Applicable

(h) Date onwhich the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188: Not Applicable

II.  Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions atarm’s length basis:

Name(s) of the related party | Nature of contracts / | Duration ofthe contracts/ | Salientterms ofthe contracts Date(s) of Amount paid
and nature of relationship | arrangements/ arrangements/ orarrangements or transactions | approval by the | asadvances,
transactions transaction including the value, ifany Board, ifany ifany
Global Surfaces Inc Sales 1(One) year Based on Arm’s Length basis June 17,2022 | Not
Rs.299.27 Mn. Applicable
Rendering of Rs.2.62 Mn.
Professional Services

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mayank Shah
Place: Jaipur (Chairman & Managing Director)
Date: May 29, 2023 (DIN: 01850199)
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended March 31, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Global Surfaces Limited

PA-10-006 Engineering and Related Indus SEZ,
Mahindra World City Teh- Sanganer Rajasthan 302037

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Global
Surfaces Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our Opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby
report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by company for the financial year ended on
March 31,2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) TheCompaniesAct,2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules
made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed

there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations

made thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct

Investmentand External Commercial borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition

of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider

Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee

Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not applicable to the Company

during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of

Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the

Company during the Audit Period);

€)

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue
and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the

Companies Actand dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the
AuditPeriod);

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 notified with effect
from December1,2015;

Note: The Equity Shares of the Company were listed on National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited (“Stock Exchanges”) w.e.f.
March23,2023.

g)

h)

(vi) We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
following:

a) Secretarial Standards pursuant to section 118(10) of the Act, issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

b) Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Ltd. (BSE)
and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) as per SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.

We further reportthat

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors including one Woman Director. There were no changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation atthe meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if
any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further reportthat during the audit period the company has

i)  Issue of 1,10,70,000 (Fresh Issue of 85,20,000 and 25,50,000 Offer for

Sale) fully Paid-up Equity Shares of INR. 10/- by the route of Initial public

offer.

We further report that having regard to compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in
pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the
followinglaws applicable specifically to the Company:

i)  TheFactories Act,1948;

ii) ThePetroleum Act, 1934 and the rules made there under;

iif) The Environment Protection Act, 1986 and the rules made there under;

iv) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and the rules
made there under; and

v)  The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and the rules

made there under
We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable
financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this
Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit
and other designated laws.

For Vimal Gupta and Associates

CS Vimal Kumar Gupta
Practicing Company Secretary
M.No.: F6582 CP.No.: 15035
Firm No.: S2016R]382000
Peer Review No.: 970/2020
UDIN: FO06582E000316023

Place: Jaipur
Date: May 29, 2023

This report is to be read along with our letter of even date which is
annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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Global Surfaces Limited
PA-10-006 Engineering and Related Indus SEZ,
Mahindra World City Teh- Sanganer Rajasthan 302037

Ourreportofeven date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial
records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

3. Wehave notverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Whereverrequired, we have obtained the managementrepresentation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination
was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit reportis neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Vimal Gupta and Associates

CS Vimal Kumar Gupta

Practicing Company Secretary

M.No.: F6582 CP.No.: 15035

Firm No.: S2016R]382000

Place: Jaipur Peer Review No.: 970/2020
Date: May 29, 2023 UDIN: F006582E000316023
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Annexure-1V

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1. Abriefoutline on CSR Policy ofthe Company:

The Company has a long and cherished tradition of commendable initiatives, institutionalized programmes and practices of Corporate Social
Responsibility which have played a laudable role in the development of several underdeveloped people. Our CSR activities are essentially guided by
project-based approach in line with the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs of the Government of India. During the financial year
the Company has done CSR activities in Preventive Health Care and Vocational Skills.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

SI.No. | Name ofthe Director Designation / Nature of Directorship Number of meetings of Number of meetings of
CSR Committee held CSR Committee attended
during the year during the year
1 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil Independent Director (Chairperson) 01 01
2 Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma Independent Director 01 01
3 Mrs. Sweta Shah Director 01 01
3. | Provide the web - link where CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-
board are disclosed on the website of the Company. content/uploads/documents/Company-
Policies/CSR%20Policy.pdf
https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-content/uploads/documents/Composition-of-
. . s . Various-C ittees-of-
Provide the web - link where Composmon of CSR Commlttee, approved by the Biral:;/s(:o(r)n";:glsliti?ns"/gz00f%2OVarious%ZOCommittees%ZOof%ZOBoard.pdf
Board are disclosed on the website of the Company.
4. | Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Not Applicable
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).
5. | Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7
of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Nil
amount required for set off for the financial year, if any.
SI. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set-off for the
No. preceding financial years (in Rs) financial year, if any (in Rs)
Nil
6. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5). Rs. 29,74,11,921/-
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5). Rs. 59,48,238/-
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years. | Not Applicable
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any. Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c). Rs. 59,48,238/-

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
SPe“t fpr the Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Flnam?lal CSR Account as per Section 135(6). Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section 135(5).
Year. (in Rs.)
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer
Rs. 61,06,035/- Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

m (2) 3) 4 ) (6 Q)

SL Name of Item from the list of activities Local area Location of the project. Project Amount allocated

No. the Project in Schedule VII to the Act. (Yes/ No). State District duration. | for the project (in Rs.).
Not Applicable
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(8) 9) (10) (1D
Amount spent in the current | Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account | Mode of Implementation - Mode of Implementation -
financial Year (in Rs.). for the project as per section 135(6) (in Rs.). Direct (Yes/No). Through Implementing Agency
Name | CSR Registration Number.
Not Applicable
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
) @ (3) (4) 5) (6) (7 (8)
SL Project Name Item from the Local | Location of Amount spent | Mode of Mode of
No. of the Project list of activities in area the project for the project | implem- implementation-
schedule VII to the Act (Yes/ (inRs.) entation - Through
No) Direct implementing agency
(Yes/No)
State/ District Name CSR
registration
number
PM Cares Multi Fund Set
ultipurpose Fund Se
Fund/Any other b pCerrljtral Govt./State
u . - -
1. | Fund Setup by bay - 23,00,000 - -
Govt.
Central Govt.or
State Govt.
Directly by Any Activity Defined Rajasthan Direct
2. Company under Schedule VII of Yes ) 12,17,335 - -
Companies act, 2013 Jaipur (Yes)
Donation to Any Activity Defined Rajasthan Direct P 1 ¢sR 000199
3. under Schedule VII of Yes ) 25,88,700 Foundati
Charitable Trusts Companies act, 2013 Jaipur (Yes) on 14
Total 61,06,035
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: - Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the financial year: - Rs. 61,06,035
(g) Excess amount for set off: - 1,57,797
Sl. No. Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
0] Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 59,48,238
(ii) Total amount spent for the financial Year 61,06,035
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 1,57,797
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Not Applicable
financial years, if any
W) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii) - (iv)] 1,57,797

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years

SL Preceding
No. Financial
Year

Amount
transferred to
Unspent CSR
Account under
section 135 (6)
(inRs.)

Amount spent
in the reporting
financial year
(inRs.)

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VII as per
section 135(6), if any

Amount remaining
to be spent in
succeeding
financial years.
(inRs.)

Name of Amount Date of
the Fund (in Rs) transfer
Not Applicable
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s).:

1) (2) (3) (4) ) (6) (7 (8) )
SL Project| Name Financial year Project Total amount Amount Cumulative Status of the
No. ID of the in which the duration | allocated for spent on the amount spent project -
Project project was the project the project in at the end of Completed/
commenced (inRs.) the reporting reporting Ongoing
Financial Year Financial Year
(in Rs) (inRs.)
Not Applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the
financial year. (Asset-wise details)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)

(b)  Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset

(o) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such

capital asset is registered, their address etc.

(d)  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete

address and location of the capital asset).

: - Not Applicable
: - Not Applicable

: - Not Applicable

: - Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5): Not Applicable

Place: Jaipur
Dated: August 14, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of GLOBAL SURFACES LIMITED

Mayank Shah

(Managing Director)

(DIN: - 01850199)

Dinesh Kumar Govil
(Chairman- CSR Committee)
(DIN: - 02402409)
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PARTICULARS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134 (3) (M) OF THE COMPANIES
READ WITH THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

Conservation of Energy
the steps taken orimpact on conservation of energy;

The Company is continuously engaged in the process of energy
conservation & strives to make the plant energy efficient. Energy
conservation dictates how efficiently a Company can conduct its
operations and reduce the cost of production thereby increasing the
profitability benefitting the Company as well as its customer.

Global recognize the importance of energy conservation in
decreasing the deleterious effects of global warming and climate
change. The Company has undertaken various energy efficient
practices and is committed to become an environment friendly
organisation.

plants are equipped with high energy efficiency motors and variable
frequency drives.
continuous monitoring of power factor.
training and awareness programmes for employees were conducted
forreducing energy waste.
the steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of
energy:

Use of roof mounted self-driven ventilator in plant thereby enabling
substantial saving in electrical energy. Roof mounted self-driven
ventilators work on wind assisted ventilation.

Use of Solar power penal at roof of both plant for captive
consumption of electricity at Plants which resulted in clean and green
energy.

the capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s:

During the current financial year, the Company has notincurred any
capital expenditure on the energy conservation equipment.

Technology Absorption

the efforts made towards technology absorption; The Company
realizes that in order to stay competitive and avoid obsolescence, it
will have to invest in technology across multiple product line and
have to introduce the new products in line with the demand of the

Place: Jaipur
Dated: August 14, 2023

customers. Hence, the Company is making every effort to develop
products to meet the changing demand of the public atlarge.

Efforts made towards technology absorption, adaptation and
innovation: Company lays greater emphasis on technology
absorption and innovations as the Company is engaged in the
business marked with rapid technology changes and obsolescence.
The Company strives to keep pace with the rapid changes adopt new
technologies periodically to be in line with competitive market
conditions. The Company continuously strives to adopt latest
technology for improving productivity, quality and reducing
consumption of scarce raw material, energy and other inputs.

Our Technical team visits international markets to understand and
explore the possibility of using such latest technology in production
and processing of our products.

The Company has notimported any technology during the last three
years. Hence, the particulars with respect to efforts made towards
technology absorption and benefits derived etc. are not applicable
to the Company:.

The company undertakes from time-to-time studies for process
improvement, plant design development to improve quality and
performance of its products to substitute important material and
components and to economics the production cost. Based on these
studies appropriate actions are taken to achieve these goals. In
absence of a separate research & development department, it is
difficult to quantify the amount spent on research & development.

The Company during the year under review has not carried out any
activity which can be construed as Research & Development and as
of now there is no specific plan for engaging into such activities. As
such, there is no expenditure toreport.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGSAND OUTGO
During the year under review, the total standalone foreign exchange

earnings was Rs. 1,752.10 Millions and expenditure was Rs. 64.32
Millions.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mayank Shah
(Chairman & Managing Director)
(DIN: 01850199)
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DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

(i) The percentage increase in the remuneration of each Director and the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the

employees of the Company:

SL. No.| Name of the Directors Designation Remuneration for the % increase of the Ratio of remuneration
financial year 2022-23 remuneration in to median
(R in Millions) financial year 2022-23 remuneration
of the employees
1 Mr. Mayank Shah Chairman and 19.02 Nil 84.52
Managing Director
2 Mrs. Sweta Shah Executive Director 6.96 Nil 30.93
3 Mr. Ashish Kumar Kachawa | Non-Executive Director -- Nil --
4 Mr. Dinesh kumar Govil Independent Director - Nil -
5 Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma| Independent Director -- Nil --
6 Mr. Sudhir Baxi Independent Director -- Nil --

Note: Independent Directors were paid sitting fees for attending the Meetings of Board and Committees.

The median remuneration of the employees of the Company as on March 31,2023 was Rs. 2.25 Lakhs.

(ii) Thepercentageincreaseinthe remuneration of KMP:

SL. No.| Name of the KMPs Designation Remuneration for the % increase of the Ratio of remuneration
financial year 2022-23 remuneration in to median
® in Millions) financial year 2022-23 remuneration
of the employees*
1 Mr.Rajesh Gattani* Chief Financial Officer 2.62 Nil 11.64
2 Mr.Assem Sehgal Company Secretary and 0.97 Nil 4.31
Compliance Officer

*Mr. Rajesh Gattani, Chief Financial Officer of the Company has resigned with effect from July 04,2023.

(iii) The percentageincreased inthe median remuneration of employeesis Nil.

(iv) Thetotalnumber of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 305

(v) The average percentile increase already made in the salaries of the employees other than the managerial personnel in the financial year and its

comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional

circumstances forincrease in the remuneration.

- Average increase in the remuneration ofall employees excluding KMP is Nil.

- Average increase in the remuneration of KMP is Nil.

-Increasein salary is based on the Company’s performance, individual performance, inflation, prevailing industry trends and benchmarks.

(vi) Itishereby affirmed thatthe remunerationisas per the remuneration policy of the Company.

*Ratio of remuneration to median remuneration of the employees is calculated on the basis of total amount paid as remuneration during the financial
year 2022-23.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report popularly known as MD&A
is the communication straight from the management to their valued
shareholders giving them insights into the present business conditions of
the company and its future potential. It gives a bird’s eye view about the
Company’s objective, predictions and forward-looking statements. This
report is an integral part of the Boards’ Report. Aspects on industry
structure and developments, opportunities and threats, outlook, risks,
internal control systems and their adequacy, material developments in
human resources and industrial relations have been covered in this
Report.

Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015, and relevantamendments, rules issued thereafter.

Globally, the natural and engineered stone (combined) market accounted
for $65,746 million in 2022 and is expected to reach of $114,504 million
by 2032. In the year 2022, the natural stone segment accounted for a
major 59% of market share with $38,829 million while the contribution
of engineered stone segment stood at $26,917 million. However, in
projected years between 2022 and 2027, the engineered stone is
expected to grow at a higher CAGR of 6-7% as compared to natural stone
which is expected to grow at a CAGR of 5-6%. This is mainly because the
engineered stones are non-porous, strong, durable and stain resistant.
While the usages of natural stones like granite, marble, soapstone for
countertops were dominant in the past, there has been a visible shift in
favor of quartz over the past decade. The migration has resulted in the
product becoming the fastest growing material to be used in the
countertop industry, gradually eating into the share of other materials,
such as granite, manufactured solid surfaces and laminate.

Our values and guiding principle have been woven around seven major
aspects which are evidently visible in all the activities performed by the
Company i.e., Customer Satisfaction, Innovation, Quality Product and
Service,

Employee Growth, Culture, Being Sensitive towards Society and
Environment Protection. This guiding principle is now the culture of the
organization and ensures that both internal and external customers are
satisfied.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

World

Asperthe International Monetary Fund (IMF)’s World Economic Outlook
growth projections released in October 2022, the world economy grew
by 6 % in CY211 majorly due to economic recovery and the lower base.
For CY22, projection for global economic growth slashed to 3.2% citing
disruptions due to the Russia-Ukraine conflict and higher-than-expected
inflation worldwide. The CY23 is projected to slow down further to 2.7%
mainly due to tightening global financial conditions, expectations of
steeper interest rate hikes by major central banks to fight inflation, a
sharper slowdown in China and spillover effects from the war in Ukraine
with gas supplies from Russia to Europe tightening. The IMF projects
world economy growth between 2.6%-3.3% on year on year (Y-o-Y) basis
fornext5 years.

Indian

In Q1FY23, India recorded 13.5% growth in GDP which can largely be
attributed better performance by agriculture and services sectors.
Prospectively for the FY23, the announcements in the Union Budget
2022-23 on boosting public infrastructure through enhanced capital
expenditure are expected to augment growth and crowd in private

investment through large multiplier effects. However, heightened
inflationary pressures and resultant policy tightening may pose risk to
the growth potential.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

The market for natural stones in India is expected to grow considerably in
the coming few years. India has rich reserves of stones due to its diverse
geographical location. India holds 3rd place in the global production of
natural stones, and holds nearly 11% share of the global natural stone
market. Rajasthan is the most important and a major contributor to
country’s mining business and holds nearly 90% share in India’s
sandstone sector. Natural stone deposits in Rajasthan can be widely
observed in Kota, Bharatpur, Tonk, and Sawai Madhopur, among others.
India has rich mineral deposits and has one of the largest granite reserves
in the world. It accounts for over 20% of the global granite reserves. The
granite production mainly takes place in and around the states of Andhra
Pradesh, Telangana, Rajasthan, Karnataka, Tamil Nadu, Uttar Pradesh,
Odisha, Madhya Pradesh and Gujaratamong others.

OUTLOOK

Engineered Quartz Stone

Engineered quartz stone is man-made stone, manufactured from mix of
quartz crystal aggregates, resin binder, pigments and additives. Quartz is
natural stone and found in abundance around the globe. It occurs
naturally in clusters and does not form huge stone blocks like granite,
marble or other rocks which makes it unsuitable for direct use. Quartz is
processed further and converted into engineered stone for application in
building material. Engineered quartz stone is alternative to granite and
other natural stones. Quartz stones have similar qualities of granite like
its durability, beauty, elegance and scratch & heat resistance. But unlike
granite it is non-porous and not subject to tone variation as it has added
chemicals and binders to control its properties. It can be produced in
same colors, texture and designs and can be used in large areas. Demand
for engineered quartz stone is rapidly rising. Engineered stone quartz is
preferred over other stones due to its higher durability and weight
bearing capacity.

The global engineered stones market is expected to reach $ 48,104
million by 2032. The industry is expected to grow at a CAGR of 5-6%
between 2027 and 2032.

As the global economy is recovered from the pandemic, the industry has
started to witness a gradual uptrend. Rising per-capita income, rapid
expansion of building sectors, and existence of a high number of
engineered stones in regions such Asia-Pacific would further boost
demand. Increase in residential renovations, as well as surging need for
redeveloping old building constructions will further contribute towards
growth of the industry. Engineered stones are environmentally friendly
as they contain 93% crushed leftover stone from quarries or natural
stone beds and their demand would be benefitted with increasing need
for environmentally friendly and sustainable building products for
various applications such as kitchen worktops, flooring, raised flooring,
internal cladding, vanity tops, and bathroom furnishings for residential
and commercial construction projects.

Natural Stone

Natural stone is a mountain-acquired mineral, which includes quartzite,
slate, limestone, sandstone, marble, granite, and others. It majorly finds
its application in residential and commercial flooring and wall cladding,
owing to its durability, hardness, and aesthetic appearance. It finds
applications in furniture, statuary, and monuments. The global natural
stone market size was valued at $33,375.3 million in 2020, and is
projected toreach $50,465.1 million by 2030, registering a CAGR 0f 4.0%.
The outlook for the natural stone segment is stable with a positive upside
in the medium term. The natural stone industry is linked to the
commercial and residential real estate industries. The residential and
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commercial real estate industries are expected to return to normalcy

recovering from the effects of the pandemic.

The real estate industry made a quick turnaround post the first wave of

the pandemic. The residential real estate segment remains poised for

growth in the future on account of relatively better economic momentum

and better preparedness to deal with newer variants of the virus or any

lockdowns.

The resumption in sales and launches indicates that consumer sentiment

around investing in a property is picking up. With the reopening of the

economy, the rate of absorption of office spaces is expected to increase as

offices have started to open up again and employees are returning back.

This augurs well for the natural stone industry as construction of new

real estate would also lead to demand growth for natural stones such as

marble and granite.

Countertop Market Overview

The global countertops market size is expected to reach USD 217.79

billion by 2030, registering a CAGR of 6.5% over the forecast period. On

account of the increasing demand for engineered and natural stone in the

construction of new buildings, major countertop manufacturers are

concentrating on producing a variety of materials. Work platforms are in

greater demand due to the investments by construction companies

worldwide in renovating existing structures.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

OPPORTUNITIES

« Engineered stone demand is growing much faster globally. Dumping
duty imposed on stone exports out of China by USA and European
Union makes Indian processed granite more competitive in those
markets.

* Natural stone processing is environment friendly. So, it fits into the
sustainable living movement thatis gaining traction.

¢ India has one of the largest range of colors in natural stones. As the
stone mining business organizes there is a big opportunity for the
industry to grow.

THREATS

* Unfavorable foreign exchange rate fluctuations.

» Risingcosts of transportation makes the landed costs of goods high in
theimporting countries, which in turnimpacts overall demand.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company deals only in one segment i.e., processing natural stones

and manufacturing engineered quartz, accordingly there is only single

reportable segment.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL

PERFORMANCE

The overview of financial performance with respect to operational

performance of the Company can be obtained from the various following

ratio analysis.

¢ Debtors Turnoveris 86 days

« Inventory Turnover Ratio is 94 days

« InterestCoverage Ratiois 10.85 times

¢ CurrentRatiois 3.87 times

* DebttoEquityRatiois 0.17 times

¢ Operating profit Margin 33.36%

« EBITDAmargin 16.68%

* NetProfitMargin 14.18%

* ReturnonNetWorth9.63%

RISKS AND CONCERNS

We believe that great things never come from comfort zones and so, we

are constantly working on way to do things better every single moment.

In the current scenario of competitive business environment and open

economy across the world, no Company can imagine risk free business

environment. Your Company is proactively taking steps to identify and

monitor the risk and make efforts to mitigate significant risks that may

affected.

The Board of Directors and Senior Management are continuously and

carefully monitoring the risks and concerns related to the business for
example: macro-economic factors, foreign exchange fluctuation,
geographical concentration, change in the Government policies and
legislation, increase in the raw material prices etc. The Company has also
taken several insurance policies to mitigate other risks and concerns of
the Company.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

Research and Development activities have played a pivotal role in
differentiating the overall attributes. In this direction, your Company has
increased its R&D efforts in scope and scale for comprehensive and
integrated research worksin the identified Thrustareas.

We continuously strive towards in-house product development
/innovation to remain in tune with evolving industry trends.

With experienced and qualified human resources our R&D capabilities
are the driving forces of our current momentum and future growth of the
organization. With innovation instilled into culture of the company at
various levels, R&D is a crucial attribute in fostering our vision to become
agloballeaderin the industry.

We are augmenting our research capabilities and expanding our product
portfolio to address the prospective demand across global markets.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Commensurate with the size and nature of operations, the Company has
adequate systems of internal control comprising authorization levels,
supervision, checks and balances and procedures through documented
guidelines which provide that all transactions are authorized, recorded
and reported correctly and compliance with policies and statutes are
ensured.

The Company has an independent internal audit system to monitor the
entire operations and services. The top management and Audit
Committee of the Board review the findings of the Internal Auditor and
takes remedial actions accordingly.

The division also assesses opportunities for improvement in business
processes, systems & controls; provides recommendations, designed to
add value to the organization and follows up on the implementation of
corrective actions and improvements in business processes after review
by the audit committee and senior management.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/ INDUSTRIAL
RELATION

The Company always believes that its growth is closely linked with the
growth and overall development of its employees. The Company is
committed to upgrade the skill of its employees and to create an
environment where excellence is recognized and rewarded. The target is
to place right people at right position and to enhance the efficiency,
working speed, competency and time management skill of its employees.
The Company’s endeavor is to create an environment where people can
use all of their capabilities in promoting the business of the Company.
Number of people employed, asat March 31,2023 are 305.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statement in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Directors
Report describing the Companies strengths, objectives, strategies,
projection and estimate are forward looking and progressive within the
meaning of all applicable laws and regulation. Actual results may vary
depending upon the various aspects of the economic such as government
policies, rules and regulations, economic conditions and other incidental
factors. Important factors that could make a difference to our Company’s
operations include raw material availability and prices, cyclical demand
and pricing in our principal markets, changes in government regulations,
tax regimes, economic developments within India and outside the
countries in which we conduct business and other incidental factors.
Management will not be in any way responsible for the actions taken
based on such statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Mayank Shah
(Chairman and Managing Director)

Place:Jaipur DIN: 01850199

Date: August 14, 2023

36



=3 OBAL

SURFACES

Statutory Reports

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED ON MARCH 31,2023

Inaccordance with Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015) the report on Compliance
with the conditions of corporate governance and the disclosure
requirements for the year 2022-23 is given as under:

Your Company has a defined policy framework for ethical conduct of
businesses. We believe that Corporate Governance is a value-based
framework to manage the affairs of the Company in a fair, ethical and
transparent manner, which goes beyond the practices enshrined in the
laws. Corporate Governance is all about maintaining a valuable
relationship and trust with all stakeholders. We consider stakeholders as
partners in our success and we remain committed to maximizing
stakeholder’s value, be it shareholders, employees, suppliers, customers,
investors, communities or policy makers. This approach to value creation
emanates from our belief that sound governance system, based on
relationship and trust, is integral to creating enduring value for all.
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

At Global Surfaces Limited, we feel proud to belong to a Company whose
visionary founder laid the foundation stone for good governance long
back and made it an integral principle of the business. Corporate
Governance has been a continuous journey and the business goals of the
Company are aimed at the overall well- being and welfare of all the
constituents of the system. Corporate Governance shows a set of systems
and practices to ensure that the Company’s affairs are being managed in a
manner which ensures accountability, transparency and fairness in all
transactions in the widest sense. The objective is to meet stakeholder’s
aspirations and societal expectations. Good governance practices
generate from the dynamic culture and positive mindset of the
organization. This is described in shareholder returns, high credit
ratings, governance processes and an entrepreneurial performance
focused work environment.

Your Company is committed to conduct its business based on the highest

standard of corporate governance and in compliance with the applicable
laws, rules, regulations and statutes. Your company believes in building
and retaining the trust of its stakeholders by placing special emphasis on
formulation and compliance of principles of Corporate Governance.
Global, being a value-driven organization for all the stakeholders, it has
always worked towards building trust with shareholders, employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders based on the principle of
good Corporate Governance viz. integrity, equity, transparency, fairness,
disclosure, accountability and commitment to values. These main drivers
together with the Company’s outgoing contribution to the local
communities through meaningful corporate social responsibility
initiatives will play a pivotal role in fulfilling our vision to be the most
admired and competitive Company in our industry and our mission to
create the value for all our stakeholders. These practices have been
followed since inception and have led to the sustained growth of the
Company.

AtGlobal, itis our belief that as we move closer towards our aspirations of
becoming a stupendous corporation, our Corporate Governance
standards must be planetary benchmarked. This gives us the confidence
of having put in the right building blocks for future growth and ensuring
thatwe achieve our ambitions ina prudentand sustainable manner.
BOARD COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS

A Board of Directors is essentially a panel of people who are elected to
represent shareholders. At Global, we believe that an active and well-
informed Board is necessary to ensure highest standards of corporate
governance. All statutory and other significant and material information
are placed before the Board to enable it to discharge its fiduciary duties
keeping in mind the interests of all its stakeholders and the Company’s
corporate governance philosophy.

At Global, the Board of Directors has an optimum combination of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors.
The composition of the Board, category of Directors and details of other
Directorships and Committee memberships as on March 31, 2023 as
follows:

2 Executive

Directors

3 Independent

Directors

6 Board of
Directors

1 Non- Executive
and

Non-Independent
Director
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Name Category Designation No. of Committees position No. of Directorship in
in other Companies* Other Companies#
Chairperson | Member
Mr. Mayank Shah Executive Director Chairman and
and Promoter Managing Director Nil Nil Nil
Mrs. Sweta Shah Executive Director and Director Nil Nil Nil
Member of Promoter Group
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil Independent Director Director 04 04 04
Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma Independent Director Director Nil 02 Nil
Mr. Sudhir Baxi Independent Director Director Nil 02 1
Mr. Ashish Kumar Kachawa Non- Executive Director Director Nil Nil 1

* Committees considered are Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, including that of your Company.

#Itincludes Private Limited and unlisted Public Limited Companies and excludes Directorships in foreign and Section 8 companies.

There is no inter-se relationship between the Board members except
Mrs. Sweta Shah who is Spouse of Mr. Mayank Shah.

The Non-Executive & Independent Directors doesn’t hold any shares and
convertible instruments.

In the opinion of the board, the Independent Directors fulfill the
conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Regulations and
areindependent of the management.

The Board, Nomination and Remuneration Committee consider, inter
alia, key qualifications, skills, expertise and competencies, whilst
recommending to the Board the candidature for appointment of a
Director. In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the Board,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee satisfies itself about the
independence of the Directors vis-a-vis the Company to enable the Board
to discharge its functions and duties effectively. The Board, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee ensures that the candidates identified for
appointment as Directors are not disqualified for appointment under
section 164 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and SEBI Regulations and that they have not been debarred or

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of
companies by SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority.

During the year, under review, no Independent Director has resigned
from the Company.

As per the sub clause ‘h’ of clause 2 of part C of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 the Board has identified the following list of core
skills/expertise/competencies required in the context of the Company’s
business which are available with the Board:

» Leadership/Operational Experience

e Strategyand Planning

» Industry Experience, Research & Developmentand Innovation
* Global Business

» Corporate Governance

» Financial, Regulatory/Legal and Risk Management

Name of the Director Area of Expertise

Mr. Mayank Shah

Leadership/Operational Experience, Strategic and Planning, Industry experience, Research & Development and
Innovation, Global Business, Financial, Regulatory/Legal & Risk Management, Corporate Governance

Mrs. Sweta Shah

Leadership/Operational Experience, Strategic and Planning, Industry experience, Research & Development and
Innovation, Global Business, Financial, Regulatory/Legal & Risk Management, Corporate Governance

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil
Corporate Governance

Strategic and Planning, Industry experience, Global Business, Financial, Regulatory/Legal & Risk Management,

Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma

Strategic and Planning, Industry experience, Global Business.

Mr. Sudhir Baxi

Leadership, Strategic and Planning, Industry experience, Global Business.

Mr. Ashish Kumar Kachawa

Strategic and Planning, Industry experience, Global Business.

The details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors are posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at

https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-content/uploads/documents/Company-Policies/Familiarisation_Programme.pdf

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets once in every quarter to review the quarterly financial results and other items of the agenda and if necessary, additional meetings are

held as and when required. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under Regulation 17(2) of the SEBI (LODR)

Regulations, 2015, Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard-1 issued by ICSI. During the year under review, 11 (Eleven) Board meetings were held.
The date of the Board meetings and attendance of Directors there atand at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) are as follows:
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Name ofthe Directors Date of Board Meetings and Attendance there at Attendance

at31stAGM
heldon
August 16,2022
17.06.2022(26.06.2022 | 18.07.2022| 25.07.2022 | 05.08.2022| 25.11.2022 | 08.12.2022 | 25.02.2023| 10.03.2023|16.03.2023 [ 20.03.2023

Mr. Mayank Shah v N N N N N N v v v v

Mrs. Sweta Shah N N v v N N v v N v v N

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil N N N N v v N v v N v

Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma v N v v v v v v v v v

Mr. Sudhir Baxi v v v v v v vV

Mr. Ashish Kumar Kachawa N v v

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on March
01,2023 interalia, to discuss:

* Review of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the
Board of Directors as a whole.

« Review of the performance of the Chairman of the Company taking
into account the views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

¢ Assess the quality, content and timeliness of flow of information
between the management and the Board that is necessary for the
Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The code of conduct has been circulated to all the members of the Board
and Senior Management Personnel and they have affirmed their
compliance with the said code of conduct for the financial year ended on
March 31, 2023. The code of conduct has been posted on the Company’s
website:

https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-content/uploads/documents/Company-
Policies/Code%200f%20Conduct.pdf

This code ensures compliance with the provisions of Regulation 17(5) of
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. A declaration to this effect signed by
Mr. Mayank Shah, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
stating that the members of Board of Directors and Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of Board of
Directors and senior management is annexed as Annexure A to the
Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Committees of the Board play an important role in the governance,
focus on specificareas and make informed decisions within the delegated
authority. Majority of the members constituting the Committees are
Independent Directors. The recommendations, observations and
decisions of the Committees are placed before the Board for information
and approval. During the year under review, all recommendations of the
Committees were accepted by the Board.
The Board has four Committees namely Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee
and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Nominationand Remuneration Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Committee is governed by, in line with the regulatory requirements
mandated by Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015. The primary objective of the Committee is to monitor

and provide an effective supervision of the management’s financial
reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the
highest level of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter alia, include the
following:

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the
disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial
statements are correct, sufficientand credible;

2.  Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of
appointmentofauditors of the Company;

3. Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services
rendered by the Statutory Auditors;

4. Reviewing the annual financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with
particular reference to:

(a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility
Statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c)
of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons
forthe same.

(c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the
exercise of judgement by management.

(d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising
outofauditfindings.
(e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to
financial statements.
(f) Disclosure of any related party transactions.
(g) Qualifications in the draftauditreport.

5.  Reviewing the quarterly financial statements before submission to
the Board forapproval;

6. Reviewing the statement of uses/application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.),
the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated
in the offer document/ prospectus/notice and the report submitted
by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a
public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to
the Board to take up steps in this matter;

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance,
and effectiveness of audit process;

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the
Company with related parties;

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is
necessary;

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management
systems;

12. Reviewing performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, and
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adequacy of the internal control systems; 22. Review the statement of significant related party transactions (as
13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management;
the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority 23. Review the management letters/letters of internal control
of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors;
and frequency of Internal Audit; 24. Review the Internal Audit reports relating to internal control
14. Discussion with Internal Auditors of any significant findings and weaknesses; and
follow up thereon; 25. The appointment, removal and terms of remunerations of the Chief
15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Internal Auditor shall be subject to review by the Audit Committee;
Auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity 26. Review the:
orafailure of internal control systems of a material. . . .
(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of
16. Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in
about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion terms of Regulation 32(1);
toascertainany area of concern (b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those
17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to stated in the offer document/ prospectus/ notice in terms of
the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non- Regulation 32(7).
payment of declared dividends) and creditors; . . . . .
27. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of
18. Toreview the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; reference of the Audit Committee and any other terms of reference
19. Approvingthe appointment of the chief financial officer or any other as may be decided by the Board and/or specified/provided under
person heading the finance function or discharging that function the Companies Act, the Listing Regulations or by any other
after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of regulatory authority;
the candidate; Composition
20. Reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances from/ The Committee’s composition is in line with the requirements of section
investment by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR)
rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, Regulations, 2015. The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Dinesh Kumar
whichever is lower including existing loans/advances/investments Govil, Independent Director as Chairperson, Mr. Yashwant Kumar
existingas on the date of coming into force of this provision. Sharma, Independent Director and Mr. Sudhir Baxi, Independent
21. Review the management discussion and analysis of financial Director of the Company as members as on March 31, 2023. The

condition and results of operations;

Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

During the year under review, the Committee met 5 (Five) times i.e., June 17, 2022, August 08, 2022, November 25, 2022, December 08, 2022 and

February 13,2023.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present in the Annual General Meeting of the Company to answer the shareholder queries.

Name of the Committee Members Category Attendance ofthe Committee members at the Committee Meetings
June 17, August 05, | November25, | December08,| February13,
2022 2022 2022 2022 2023

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil Chairperson v v v v v

Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma Member v v v v v

Mr. Mayank Shah Member v v v Vv NA

Mr. Sudhir Baxi Member NA NA NA NA v

The committee was reconstituted on December 08, 2022. Prior to reconstitution the committee members were: Mr. Mayank Shah, Mr. Dinesh Kumar

Govil and Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance
with provisions of the section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 19 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
inter alia, include the following:

« formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the
Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees;

« formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and
the Board of Directors;
* devisinga policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

« identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who
may be appointed in Senior Management in accordance with the
criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors their
appointmentand removal;

» whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the
Independent Director, on the basis of the report of performance
evaluation of Independent Directors;

« recommended to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form,
payable to Senior Management.

* Any other work and policy, related and incidental to the objectives of
the Committee as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made thereunder and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Composition

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Dinesh
Kumar Govil, Independent Director as Chairperson, Mr. Yashwant Kumar
Sharma, Independent Director and Mr. Sudhir Baxi, Independent
Director as members as on March 31, 2023. The Company Secretary acts
as Secretary to the Committee.

During the year under review, the Committee met 1 (one) time i.e., June
17,2022.
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The composition of the Committee and attendance of the members at the meetings of the Committee are as under:

Name of the Committee Members Category Attendance ofthe Committee members at the Committee Meetings
June 17,2022

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil Chairperson v

Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma Member v

Mr. Sudhir Baxi Member N

Remuneration paid to Directors during the financial year 2022-23

During the year, the Company has paid remuneration as mentioned below: Executive Directors

(Amount Rs. In lakhs)

Name of the Director Salary and Allowances | Perquisites | Retiral Benefits | SittingFees | Commission | Stock Options| Total

Mr. Mayank Shah 140.16 NIL NIL NIL 50 NIL 190.16

Mrs. Sweta Shah 69.60 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 69.60
Non-Executive Directors

(Amount Rs. In lakhs)

Name of the Directors Sitting Fees Commission Total

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil 3.00 0.00 3.00

Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma | 3.00 0.00 3.00

Mr. Sudhir Baxi 1.65 0.00 1.65

While deciding the remuneration, various factors such as Director’s
participation in Board and Committee Meetings during the year, other
responsibilities undertaken, such as Membership or Chairmanship of
Committees, time spentin carrying out other duties, role and functions as
envisaged in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and such
other factors as the Governance, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee may deem fit etc. were taken into consideration.

The tenure of office of the Managing Director is for 5 (Five) years from his
respective date of appointment and can be terminated by either party by
giving prior notice of three calendar months in writing. There is no
separate provision for payment of severance fees.

During the year, there were no other pecuniary relationships or
transactions of Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company

Criteria for performance evaluation

As per the provisions of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the “Committee”) has laid
down the evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of Independent
Directors. The manner for performance evaluation of Directors
(including Independent Directors) and Board as whole has been covered
inthe Board’s Report.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised a criteria for
evaluation of the performance of the Directors including the
Independent Directors. The said criteria provide certain parameters like
attendance, acquaintance with business, communication inter se
between Board members, effective participation, domain knowledge,
compliance with code of conduct, vision and strategy, benchmarks
established by global peers etc., which is in compliance with applicable

laws, regulations and guidelines.
Stakeholders Relationship Committee

In compliance with the provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 & Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 the Board has
constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee, inter
alia, include the following:

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity
including complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares,
non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends,
issue of new/duplicate share certificates, general meetings etc.

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by
shareholders.

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed
entity in respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar
& Share Transfer Agent.

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed
entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/
statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company.

Composition

The Committee comprises of Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil, Independent
Director as the Chairperson, Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma, Independent
Director and Mr. Sudhir Baxi, Independent Director as members as on
March 31, 2023. The Committee is headed by Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil,
Non-Executive Independent Director. The Company Secretary acts as
Secretary to the Committee.

The composition of the Committee and attendance of the members at the meetings of the Committee are as under:

Name of the Committee Members | Category Attendance ofthe Committee members at the Committee Meetings
March 01,2023

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil Chairperson v

Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma Member v

Mr. Sudhir Baxi Member N
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Name and Designation of the Compliance Officer

Name: Mr. Aseem Sehgal

Designation: Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

During the financial year 2022-23, No complaints were received and there is no pending Complaints.
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In compliance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are as follows:

(i) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the
Company as specified in Schedule VII.

(i) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility activities.

(iii) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility activities of the Company from time to time.

Composition

The Committee comprises of Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil, Independent Director as the Chairperson, Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma, Independent Director and

Mrs. Sweta Shah, Executive Director as members as on March 31, 2023. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. During the year
under review, the Committee met 1 (one) timei.e.,, November 25,2022.

The composition of the Committee and attendance of the members at the meeting of the Committee are as under:

Name of the Directors Category Attendance of the Committee Members at Meetings

November 25,2022

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil Chairperson v

Mr. Yashwant Kumar Sharma Member v

Mrs. Sweta Shah Member N
General Body Meetings

The details of Annual General Meetings held in last three years are as under:

Financial Year |Day, Dateand Time of AGM Venue Special Resolution Passed
2019-20 Monday, December27,2020at11 A.M. Registered Office | No
2020-21 Wednesday, November 24,2021 at02:00 P.M| Registered Office | No
2021-22 Tuesday, August 16,2022 at02:00 P.M. Registered Office | Yes

Through Video 1. Approval ofremuneration of Managing Director above the
Conferencing limitspecified in section 197.

(VC)/ Other Audio| 2. Approval of Related party Transaction of payment of

Visual Means Professional Fees to Non-Executive Director.

(0AVM) 3. Approval of remuneration of Promoter Executive Director
Remuneration as per SEBILODR Regulations, 17(6)(e)(ii)

4. Approval of Sale Purchase transactions with related party
Global Surfaces Inc.

5. Approval of Continuation of Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil as
Independent Director after attaining age of 75 Years as per
Regulation17(1A) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.

The details of Extra Ordinary General Meetings held in last three years are as under:

Financial Year |Day, Dateand Time of AGM Venue Special Resolution Passed
2019-20 Monday, September 02,2019 Registered Office | Yes
11:00 A.M. 1. Shifting of registered office from the State of West Bengal to
State of Rajasthan and alteration of Memorandum of Association
Tuesday, February 11,2020 Registered Office | Yes
11:00A.M. 1. Shifting of registered office from the State of West Bengal to
State of Rajasthan and alteration of Memorandum of Association
2020-21 Thursday, October 15,2020 Registered Office | Yes
01:00P.M. 1. Shifting of registered office from the State of West Bengal to
State of Rajasthan and alteration of Memorandum of Association
2021-22 Thursday, April 01,2021 Registered Office | Yes
11:00A.M. 1. Adoption of new setof Articles of Association
Thursday, October 07,2021 Registered Office | Yes
12:00 PM. 1. Changeinthe name ofthe Company
2. Conversion from Private to Public
3. Alteration of Memorandum of Association
4. Adoption of Memorandum of Association
5. Adoption of new sets of Articles of Association
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Postal Ballot

During the financial year 2022-23, no resolutions was passed by Postal
Ballothence no Postal Ballothas been done by the Company.

Means of Communication:

iii.

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results are
communicated through Newspaper advertisements in prominent
national and regional daily like Financial Express (National) in
English and Business Remedies in Hindi (Vernacular) Language.

The Company’s results and other corporate announcements are
promptly sent to the BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange
of India Ltd. (NSE).

The financial results and other relevant information including news

Tentative Schedule of Financial Results (For Financial Year 2022-23)

releases are also displayed on the website of the Company i.e.,
www.globalsurfaces.in

General Shareholder Information

i

Annual General Meeting

Day & Date: Wednesday & September 20, 2023; Time: 01:00 P.M.
(IST) through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio-Visual Means
(OAVM) will be hosted at Registered Office of the Company i.e. Global
Surfaces Limited, PA-10-006 Engineering and Related Indus SEZ,
Mahindra World City Teh- Sanganer, Jaipur Rajasthan 302037 IN,
Phone No.:0141-7191000.

Financial Year

April 1toMarch 31

June quarter ended results (Q1)

Within 45 days from the end of quarter.

September quarter ended results (Q2)

Within 45 days from the end of quarter.

December quarter ended results (Q3)

Within 45 days from the end of quarter.

March quarter ended / financial year ended results (Q4 and yearly)

Within 60 days from the end of quarter / financial year

iv Dividend PaymentDate
The Board of Directors did not recommend any dividend for the year under review.
v. Listingon Stock Exchanges
BSE Limited (BSE) National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400001; “Exchange Plaza”, Bandra- Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051;
Scrip Code: 543829 Trading Symbol: GSLSU
ISIN: INE0JSX01015
The Company has paid the listing fees to both the exchange(s) within the due date.
vi StockMarketData
The monthly high and low price at BSE and BSE Sensex during 2022-23 is given below:
Month Stock Prices (Rs.) BSE Sensex
High Price Low Price High Low
March-23 171.15 147.60 60,498.48 57,084.91
The monthly high and low price at NSE and NSE Nifty during 2022-23 is given below:
Month Stock Prices (Rs.) NSE Nifty
High Price Low Price High Low
March-23 172.20 151.10 17,799.95 16,828.35

Company has been listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange Limited w.e.fMarch 23,2023.

vii Registrarand Share Transfer Agent

Bigshare Services Private Limited, Mumbai is the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company. The address and
contactdetail of the RTA is given below:

S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre,
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093,
Maharashtra, India., Telephone: 022-62638200, Fax: 022-
63638280

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address
all their correspondence relating to change of address, change
in bank mandate for NECS, etc. to their respective Depository
Participant.

viii. Share Transfer System

As required under Regulation 40(9) & (10) of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, a certificate is required to be obtained from a
Practicing Company Secretary within one month of the end of
the financial year, certifying that certificate have been issued
within the time period specified in the Regulation from the date
of lodgment for transfer, sub-division, consolidation, renewal,
exchange or endorsement of calls/allotment monies. The
certificate in this regard has been obtained from M/s. Vimal
Gupta and Associates, Company Secretaries and the same has
been forwarded to BSE and NSE.
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ix. ShareholdingPatternasonMarch31,2023
Category No. of Shares Percentage
Promoter and Promoter Group 3,10,92,718 73.36
ResidentIndividuals 61,37,432 14.48
Foreign Portfolio Investors Category I - Non-Resident Indians (Repatriable) 21,38,733 5.05
Foreign Portfolio Investors Category Il - Non-Resident Indians (Repatriable) 10,35,200 2.44
Alternate investment Fund 4,31,394 1.02
Corporate Bodies 9,96,110 2.35
Non-Resident Indians (Repatriable) 8,465 0.03
Non-ResidentIndians (Non Repatriable) 4,096 0.01
ResidentIndividuals - HUF 3,32,665 0.78
Clearing Members 2,05,005 0.48
Grand Total 4,23,81,818 100.00

X. DistributionScheduleasonMarch31,2023
The shareholding pattern of the equity shares as on March 31,2023 is given below:
Category No.of Cases % of Cases Amount % of Amount
1t05,000 12,934 99.21% 16,44,396 3.88%
5,001 To 10,000 13 0.10% 2,04,355 0.48%
10,001 To 20,000 5 0.04% 1,26,985 0.30%
20,001 To 30,000 3 0.02% 1,13,033 0.27%
30,001 To 40,000 3 0.02% 1,40,346 0.33%
40,001 To 50,000 33 0.25% 2,58,484 0.61%
50,001 To1,00,000 24 0.19% 19,09,506 4.50%
1,00,001 and above 22 0.17% 3,79,84,713 89.63%
Total 13,037 100.00 4,23,81,818 100.00

xi. The statusof dematerialization of shares andliquidity ason March 31,2023 isas under:

As on March 31, 2023, 100% of the total issued and paid-up share capital was held in dematerialized form with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

Type of Holding Percentage to Share Capital for FY 2022-23
Number of Shares Percentage

Physical 0

Dematerialized

NSDL 64,30,813 15.17

CDSL 3,59,51,005 84.83

Total 4,23,81,818 100
Your Company’s shares are regularly traded on BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Limited Demat ISIN Number for NSDL and CDSL:
INE0JSX01015
xii Dividend History Website: www.globalsurfaces.in

xiii

Xiv

XV

No dividend has been declared by the Company in the past.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible
Instruments

The Company has not issued GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any
convertible other instruments, which are convertible into equity
shares of the Company during the financial year 2022-23 and no
ADR/ GDR/Warrant convertible into equity share is pending for
conversionasonMarch31,2023.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging
activities

The Company does not deal in hedging activities.

Plant Location Unit-I

Our production facility situated at E-40 to G-47, RIICO Industrial
Area, Bagru Extn., Bagru-303 007, Jaipur, Rajasthan

Email: cs@globalsurfaces.in
Unit-II

Our production facility situated at Plot No. PA-10-006 Engineering
and Related Industries SEZ, Mahindra World City Tehsil-Sanganer
Jaipur-302037, Rajasthan

Website: www.globalsurfaces.in

Email: cs@globalsurfaces.in

xvi Address for Correspondence

Shareholder’s correspondence relating to transfer/ transmission/
issue of duplicate shares or for any queries or grievances should be
addressed to the Company’s RTA at the address mentioned below:

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Mr.Jibu John

44



LOBAL

SURFACES

Statutory Reports

Bigshare Services Private Limited

S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre,
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093,
Maharashtra, India.

Tel: 022-62638200
Fax:022-63638280
Website: www.bigshareonline.com

Email: investor@bigshareonline.com

For any further assistance, the shareholders may contact:
Registered Office:

Global Surfaces Limited

PlotNo.PA-10-006

Engineering and Related Industries SEZ, Mahindra World City
Tehsil- Sanganer Jaipur - 302 037, Rajasthan, India

Phone No.:0141-7191000
CIN:L14100RJ1991PLC073860

Website: www.globalsurfaces.in Email: info@globalsurfaces.in

Disclosures

®

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

W)

The Company has followed all the relevant accounting standards to
the extentapplicable.

All related party transactions that were entered into during the
financial year were on arm'’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business of the Company. There is no materially significant related
party transaction made by the Company with Promoters, Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel or other Designated Persons which may
have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company atlarge. All
related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee
and the Board for approval. The policy on related party transactions
as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website i.e.

https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-content/uploads/documents/Company-
Policies/Policy%200n%20Dealing%?20with%20Related%20Party%?20Transactions.pdf

as per Regulation 23 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

There are no pecuniary relationships or transaction of Non-
Executive Director vis-a-vis the Company which had any potential
conflict with the interest of the Company atlarge.

There is no instance of non-compliance during the period under
review. Also, no penalties and strictures have been imposed either
by SEBI or by the stock exchanges or any other statutory authorities
on any matter related to the capital market during the last three
years.

Pursuant to section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 22 of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company
has a Whistle Blower Policy for establishing a vigil mechanism for
Directors and employees. The policy has been hosted on the website
ofthe Company at

https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-
content/uploads, /Comp,

licies/Vigil%20} 620_% "%20Policy,pdf

No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

(vi)

Pursuant to Regulation 16(1)(c) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015, the Board adopted a policy for determining material
subsidiaries and the same is available on Company’s website i.e.
https://globalsurfaces.in/wp-content/uploads/documents/Company-
Policies/Policy%20for%20determining%20material%20subsidiary.pdf

In the financial year 2022-2023 the company didn’t had material
subsidiary.

(vii) The Company has received a certificate from M/s. Mukul Dusad &

Associates, Company Secretaries certifying that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry
of Corporate Affairs or any other Statutory Authority for the
financial year ended on March 31, 2023, which is annexed as
Annexure Batthe end of thisreport.

(viii) The Company has paid total amount of Rs. 10,00,000 as fees for all

(ix)

)

xvii

xviii

Xix

services rendered to the Company and its Subsidiaries by the
Statutory Auditor.

In terms of the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,
the Company adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment
of Women at workplace and also set up an Internal Complaints
Committee to look into complaints.

relating to sexual harassment at work place of any women
employee. During the financial year 2022-23, no new complaint
has been received. Hence, no complaint is pending at the end of the
financial year.

Compliance Certificate

A certificate as required under Regulation 17 (8) of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 on financial statements for the financial
year ended on March 31, 2023 is annexed as Annexure C at the end
ofthisreport.

Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance

Asrequired under Regulation 34(3) read with Part E of Schedule V
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a certificate from Practicing
Company Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance is annexed as Annexure D at the end of this
report.

Adoption of Mandatory and Non- Mandatory Requirements

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of
Regulation 27 and Regulation 34 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015.The status on the compliance with the non-mandatory
requirementsisasunder:

The Company’s standalone and consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended as on March 31, 2023 were not
qualified.

The Company follows a robust process of communicating with the
shareholders which has been mentioned in the report under
“Means of Communication.”
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Declaration for the Compliance
with the Code of Conduct

Declaration for the Compliance with the Code of Conduct I hereby confirm and declare that all the Directors of the Company and Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the financial year 2022-23.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mayank Shah
Place: Jaipur (Chairman & Managing Director)
Dated: August 14, 2023 (DIN: 01850199)
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members,

Global Surfaces Limited
PA-10-006 Engineering and Related Indus SEZ,
Mahindra World City Teh- Sanganer, Jaipur R] 302037

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Global Surfaces Limited having CIN:
L14100RJ1991PLC073860 and having registered office at PA-10-006 Engineering and Related Indus SEZ, Mahindra World City Teh- Sanganer, Jaipur R]
302037 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal
www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on
the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairsor any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr.No. Name of the Directors DIN

1. Mayank Shah 01850199
2. Sweta Shah 06883764
3. Dinesh Kumar Govil 02402409
4. Yashwant Kumar Sharma 08686725
5. Sudhir Baxi 00092322
6. Ashish Kumar Kachawa 02530233

Ensuring the eligibility of, for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Jaipur For M/s Mukul Dusad & Associates
Date: August 14,2023 Company Secretaries
UDIN: A060067E000802083 Firm Unique Code: S2019R]707900

CS Mukul Dusad
Partner
ACSNo.:60067
CPNo.:22589
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
Under Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015
To,
The Board of Directors,

Global Surfaces Limited

PA-10-006 Engineering and Related Indus SEZ,
Mahindra World City Teh- Sanganer, Jaipur R] 302037

We, Mayank Shah, Chairman and Managing Director and Rajesh Gattani, Chief Financial Officer of Global Surfaces Limited, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, certify that:

1.

We have reviewed financial statements (Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss and all the Schedules and Notes to Accounts) and the Cash Flow
Statementand Board’s Report for the financial year 2022-23 and based on our knowledge, beliefand information:

I. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement, omit any material fact, or contain any statement that may be misleading.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year 2022-23 are fraudulent,
illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of

internal control system of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to
ratify these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
i. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
ii.  significantchangesinaccountingpolicies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes tothe financial statements; and

iii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a
significantrole in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Mayank Shah Rajesh Gattani

Place: Jaipur Chairman and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 29, 2023 DIN: 01850199
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members,

Global Surfaces Limited
PA-10-006 Engineering and Related Indus SEZ,
Mahindra World City Teh- Sanganer, Jaipur R] 302037

1.  We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance of Global Surfaces Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on
March 31,2023 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of Regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [collectively referred to as “SEBI
Listing Regulations”].

Management’s Responsibility for compliance with the conditions of SEBI Listing Regulations

2. The compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of the Company, including the preparation
and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations.

Our Responsibility

3. Ourresponsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance with
the conditions of the Corporate Governance. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

4. We have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the
compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

5. We have conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Corporate Governance Certificate and the Guidance Manual on
Quality of Audit & Attestation Services issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”).

Opinion
6. Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representation made by the directors and

the management, we hereby certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-
mentioned SEBI Listing Regulations.

7. Wefurther state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which
the managementhas conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on use

8.  The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose to enable the Company to comply with the
requirement of the SEBI Listing Regulations, and it should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept
or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may
come withoutour prior consentin writing.

Place: Jaipur For M/s Mukul Dusad & Associates
Date: August 14,2023 Company Secretaries
UDIN:A060067E000802039 Firm Unique Code: S2019R]707900

CS Mukul Dusad
Partner
ACSNo.:60067
CPNo.:22589
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NOTICE OF THE THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is here by given that the 32nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of
Global Surfaces Limited will be held on Wednesday, September 20, 2023
at01:00 P.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual
Means (OAVM) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt:

(a) The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended on March 31,2023 together with the
reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

(b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 and Auditor’s
reportthereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ashish Kumar Kachawa (DIN:
02530233), whoretires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
forre-appointment.

To re-appoint M/s. B Khosla & Co., Chartered Accountants as
statutory auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 142 and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force)and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s. B Khosla
& Co., Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 000205C) be and are hereby
re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
second consecutive term of five years, from the conclusion of this
32nd Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 37th Annual
General Meeting to be held in the year 2028 on such remuneration as
may be decided by the Board of Directors in consultation with the
Statutory Auditors of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

To approve the Related Party Transactions with Global
Surfaces INC-Subsidiary Company.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188(1)(a) and Section
188(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other
applicable provisions of the Act read with rules made there under,
Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and
other applicable laws, including any amendments, modifications,
variations or re-enactments thereof, the approval of members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded, for carrying out and/or
continuing with arrangements and transactions for the financial
year 2023-24 with Global Surfaces INC, Subsidiary Company, being a
related party of the Company”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the
Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things and execute all such documents,
instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to this
resolution.”

To Approve payment of Professional Fees to Mr. Ashish Kumar
Kachawa, Non-executive Director of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution, with
or without modification, as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections188, 197,
198 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
('the Act') and Rules made there under and pursuant to the
Regulation 17(6)(a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the me
being in force) and in accordance with the Memorandum & Articles
of Association of the Company, on recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors
of the Company, the consent of the members of the company be and
is hereby accorded for payment of professional fees to Mr. Ashish
Kumar Kachawa (DIN: 02530233), Non-Executive Director of the
Company for rendering Management and Business consultancy
services for an amount not exceeding Rs. 15,00,000/- (Rupees
Fifteen Lakhs Only) per annum from April 01, 2023 for a period of 1
(One) year on such terms and conditions as decided by Board of
Directors of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this
resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts,
deeds, things and matters as it may in its absolute discretion deem
necessary, proper, or desirable and further to do all such acts, deeds
and things and to execute all documents and writings as may be
necessary, proper, desirable or expedient to give effect to this
resolution.”

To re-appoint Mr. Mayank Shah (DIN:01850199) as Chairman
and Managing Director of the Company

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197
and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) Schedule V thereto,
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any amendment(s) thereto or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), Regulation 17 (1C) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (the ‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), Regulation
17(6)(e)(ii) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and such other
provisions as may be applicable and based on the recommendation
of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approval by the
Board, subject to such approvals of Regulatory Authority (ies), if
needed, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the re-
appointment of Mr. Mayank Shah (DIN:01850199) as the Chairman
and Managing Director of the Company for a period of five years with
effect from March 02, 2024 to March 01, 2029 (both days inclusive),
notliable to retire by rotation, on the terms and conditions including
remuneration as set out, inter-alia, in the statement annexed to the
Notice with liberty to the Board of Directors (‘Board’ which
expression shall be deemed to include any Committee constituted or
to be constituted by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the
Board in this regard) to alter and vary the terms and conditions of
the said re-appointmentand/ or remuneration as it may deem fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of
profits in any financial year during the tenure of appointment of Mr.
Mayank Shah, he shall be paid remuneration by way of salary and
perquisites as set out herein, as minimum remuneration, subject to
restrictions, if any, set out in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,
from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company
be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things and execute all such documents, instruments and
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writings as may be required to give effect to this resolution.”

To approve payment of remuneration to Executive Directors
who are Promoters ormembers of the promoter group in
excess of 5% of the net profits of the Company in a year as per
Regulation 17(6)(e)(ii) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 17(6)(e)(ii) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
as amended from time to time, the consent of the Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the payment of
remuneration to Mr. Mayank Shah, Chairman and Managing
Director and Mrs. Sweta Shah, Executive Director of the Company,
notwithstanding their aggregate annual remuneration may exceed
5 per cent of the net profits of the Company in a year, calculated as
per the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized
to take all steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give
effect to this Resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors

For Global Surfaces Limited

Aseem Sehgal
(Company Secretary and Compliance Officer)

ACS:55690

PA-10-006 Engineering and related Indus SEZ, Mahindra world city

Teh- Sanganer, Jaipur Rajasthan 302037

Place: Jaipur

Date: August 14,2023

NOTES:

1.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1)of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), setting out the material facts
concerning the business under Item Nos. 4 to 7 of the Notice is
annexed hereto. The relevant details pursuant to Regulation 36(3)
of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in
respect of Directors seeking re-appointment at this AGM are also
annexed. The matter under Special Business of the AGM Notice is
considered to be unavoidable by the Board of Directors of the
Company and hence included.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a member
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a
member of the company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to
the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of
members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for this
AGM and hence, the proxy form and attendance slip and route map
of AGM are not annexed to this notice. However, the Body
Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to
attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast
their votes through e-voting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes
before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the
Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made

available for 1,000 members on first come first served basis. This
will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or
more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are
allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first
come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through
VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In continuation with the General Circulars No. 20/2020, 02/2022,
10/2022 and 11/2022 dated May 5, 2020, May 5, 2022 and dated
December 28, 2022 respectively, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs ("MCA") (collectively referred to as “MCA
Circulars”) and SEBI Circular Nos. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CMD2/ CIR/P/
2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, and SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/
2023/4 dated January 5,2023, issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") (collectively referred to as 'SEBI
Circulars”), the financial statements (including Boards Report,
Auditors Report or other documents required to be attached
therewith) for the Financial Year ended March 31,2023 pursuant to
Section 136 of the Act and the Notice calling the AGM pursuant to
Section 101 of the Act read with the Rules framed thereunder, are
being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose
e-mail addresses are registered with the Company or the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent ("RTA") or the Depository Participant(s).
This Notice and Annual Report have been uploaded on the website
of the Company at www.globalsurfaces.in and may also be accessed
from the relevant section of the websites of the Stock Exchangesi.e.,
BSE Limited (www.bseindia.com), National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (www.nseindia.com) and on the website of RTA at
www.bigshareonline.com. The physical copies of such statements
and Notice of AGM will be dispatched only to those shareholders
who request for the same. Members who are desirous to have a
physical copy of the Annual Report should send a request to the
Company’s e-mail cs@globalsurfaces.in clearly mentioning their
Folio number/DP and Client ID. Members are requested to register/
update their e-mail addresses, in respect of electronic holdings with
the Depository through the concerned Depository Participants by
following the due procedure.

For members who have not registered their email IDs so far, are
requested to register their email IDs for receiving all the
communications including Annual Report, Notices from the
Company electronically. Members are requested to respond to their
messages and register their e-mail id and support the green
initiative efforts of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015 (as amended), and the General Circular Nos. 14/ 2020 dated
April8,2020and 17/2020 dated April 13,2020,followed by General
Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, and subsequent circulars
issued in this regard, the latest being 10/2022 dated December28,
2022 (collectively referred to as “the MCA Circulars”) and Securities
and Exchange Board of India (“the SEBI”) vide its Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, and
subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being Circular
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023
(collectively referred to as“the SEBI Circulars”), has permitted the
holding of the annual general meeting through Video
Conferencing(VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), without
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the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. The of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off
Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in date of Wednesday, September 13,2023.
respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this 9. Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a

purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Member of the Company after dispatch of the Annual Report

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through (including AGM Notice) and holds shares as on the cut-off date i.c.,

electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting Wednesday, September 13, 2023 may download the Annual Report

votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue
voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

(including AGM Notice) from the website of the Company i.e.,
www.globalsurfaces.in.
8. Members of the Company holding shares as on the cut-off date of 10. In case of joint holders, the Members whose name appear first

Wednesday, September 13, 2023 may cast their vote by remote e- holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the
Voting. The remote e-Voting period commences on Sunday,

September 17, 2023 at 9.00 AM (IST) and ends on Tuesday,
September 19, 2023 at 5.00 PM (IST).The remote e-Voting module
shall be disabled by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the

Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

11. The Company has designated the e-mail id cs@globalsurfaces.in for
redressal of investor complaints/grievances. In case you have any
queries/complaints or grievances, please write from the registered

-mailaddresst tthe gi ilid.
Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. e-matiaddresstousattiegiven ematti

The voting rights of the Members (for voting through remote e-
Voting before /during the AGM) shall be in proportion to their share
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER: -

The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, September 17,2023 at09:00 A.M. and ends on Tuesday, September 19, 2023 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-
voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/Beneficial Owners as on
the record date (cut-off date) i.e.,Wednesday, September 13, 2023 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in
proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Wednesday, September 13,2023.

How doIvote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

Interms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update
their mobile numberand email Id in their demataccounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method
Individual Shareholders 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
holding securities in Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is
demat mode with NSDL. available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting”
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provideri.e.,, NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period orjoining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. Ifyouare notregistered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visitthe e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either ona Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter
your User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e., NSDL and you will be
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

4.  Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code
mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

‘ App Store ' Google Play
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Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with CDSL

1.  Users who have opted for CDSL Easi/Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password. Option
will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest
are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then
user your existing my easi username & password.

2. Aftersuccessfullogin the Easi/Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the
e-voting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website
directly.

3. Iftheuserisnotregistered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and
clickonlogin & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4.  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a
e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP
onregistered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able
to see the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in
demat mode) login
through their depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered
with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option,
you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e,, NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at

abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depositoryi.e., NSDL

and CDSL.

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or
callat022-48867000and 022 - 24997000

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contactat toll free no. 180022 55 33

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat

mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.  Visitthe e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer

oronamobile.

2. Oncethe home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. Anewscreen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e., IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you
log-into NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e., Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your UserID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e., Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with NSDL. 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then
your user ID is IN3QQ*#*] 2%#kek*

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with CDSL. 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 12**#¥##asdictiock then your user

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

For example, if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user
ID is 101456001 ***
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Password details for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders are given below:

a) Ifyouarealready registered for e-Voting, then you can user your
existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) Ifyouare using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will
need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated
to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to
enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to
change your password.

c¢) Howtoretrieveyour ‘initial password’?

(i) Ifyouremail ID is registered in your demat account or with
the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to
you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the
attachmenti.e., a.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password
to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps
mentioned below in process for those shareholders
whose email ids are not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial
password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding
shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in
physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c¢) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two
options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your
PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based
login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and
Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

Afteryouclick on the “Login” button, home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on
NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on

NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the
companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose voting
cycle and General Meetingisin active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during
the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General
Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/0AVM”
link placed under “Join Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Castyour vote by selecting appropriate optionsi.e., assent or dissent,
verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your
vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be
displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on
the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed
to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e., other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.)
are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail tocsmukuldusad@gmail.com
with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional share
holders (i.e., other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload
their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by
clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed
under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any
other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an
event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/
Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions
(FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders
available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call
on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to Ms.
Prajakta Pawle at PrajaktaP@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered
with the depositories for procuring user id and password and
registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in
this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio
No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate
(front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
cs@globalsurfaces.in.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID
(16-digit DPID + CLID or 16-digit beneficiary ID), Name, client
master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@globalsurfaces.in. If you are an
Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are
requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.,
Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to
evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-voting
by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email
ID correctly in their demataccountin order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF
THEEGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER: -

5.

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the
instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the
EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote
on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting
systeminthe EGM/AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to
attend the EGM/AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the
EGM/AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances
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connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM
shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM
THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: -

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM
through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may
access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-
Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM”
placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are
requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu.
The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member
login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that
the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting
or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by
following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice
toavoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for
better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet
with agood speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or
Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may
experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective
network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN
Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions
may send their questions in advance mentioning their name demat
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
cs@globalsurfaces.in. The same will be replied by the company
suitably.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION102(1) OF THE
COMPANIESACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)FORMING PART OF THE NOTICE

Item No. 3:

This Explanatory Statement is in terms of Regulation 36(5) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing
Regulations’), though statutorily not required in terms of Section102 of
the Act.

The Members at the Twenty Eighth Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of
the Company held on September 16, 2019, had approved the
appointment of M/s. B Khosla & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN:
000205C’), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from
the conclusion of the Twenty Eighth AGM till the conclusion of the Thirty
Second AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2023.

After evaluating and considering various factors such as industry
experience, competency of the audit team, efficiency in conduct of audit,
independence, etc., the Board of Directors of the Company (‘Board’) has,
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, proposed the re-
appointment of M/s. B Khosla & Co., as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, for the second consecutive term of five years from the
conclusion of Thirty Second AGM till the conclusion of Thirty Seventh
AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2028, at a remuneration as
may be mutually agreed between the Board and the Statutory Auditors.

M/s.BKhosla & Co., have consented to their appointmentas the Statutory
Auditors and have confirmed that the appointment, if made, would be
within the limits specified under Section 141(3)(g) of the Act and that
they are not disqualified to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors in
terms of the provisions of Section 139 and 141 of the Act and the Rules
framed there under. The Auditors have reported their independence
from the Company and its subsidiary according to the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') and the
ethical requirements relevant to audit. The firm holds the ‘Peer Review’
certificate asissued by ‘ICAI’.

M/s. B Khosla & Co., was paid a fee of Rs. 10,00,000 for the audit of
standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023 plus applicable taxes and out-of-
pocket expenses not exceeding 10% of the audit fees. The Board of
Directors have approved the remuneration of Rs. 17,50,000 for
conducting the audit for the financial year 2023-24, excluding applicable
taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses on actuals. The
Board, in consultation with the Audit Committee shall approve revisions
in the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the remaining part of
the tenure.

Besides the audit services, the Company would also obtain certifications
from the Statutory Auditors under various statutory regulations and
certifications required by clients, banks, statutory authorities, audit
related services and other permissible non audit services as required
from time to time, for which they will be remunerated separately on
mutually agreed terms, as approved by the Board in consultation with the
Audit Committee.

The Board, in consultation with the Audit Committee, may alter and vary
the terms and conditions of re-appointment, including remuneration, in
such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with the
Statutory Auditors.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the Resolution atItem No. 3 of the accompanying Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice
for approval by the Members by way of an Ordinary Resolution.

Item No.4:

The provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015(the “SEBI
Listing Regulations”) as amended by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021, effective April 1, 2022, mandates prior
approval of Members by means of an ordinary resolution for all material
related party transactions, even if such transactions are in the ordinary
course of the business of the concerned company and at an arm'’s length
basis. A transaction with a related party shall be considered material if
the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with
previous transactions during a financial year, exceed(s) '1,000crore, or
10% of the annual consolidated turnover as per the last audited financial
statements of the listed entity, whichever islower.

Details of the proposed transactions with Global Surfaces INC, being a
Subsidiary and related party of the Company are as follows:

Maximum Value Nature of Advance Paid/ Indicative

of Transactions |Transactions Received base price

perannum

(Rs.InCrores)

100.00 Sale of Goods NA AtArms’
Length basis

The above transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on an
arm’s length basis.

In view of the above, the Company proposes to obtain prior approval of
the Members for grant of authority to the Board of Directors for carrying
out / continuing with such arrangements and transactions as specified in
the resolution or as mentioned above with Global Surfaces INC, being a
Subsidiary and a related party of the company during the financial year
2023-24.

The Audit Committee of the Company has granted approval for the
related party transactions proposed to be entered into by Company with
Global Surfaces INC in financial year 2023-24 including as stated in the
resolution and explanatory statement and has also noted that the said
transactions with Global Surfaces INC are on an arm’s length basis and in
the ordinary course of the Company’s business. The management has
provided the Audit Committee with the description of the transactions
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including material terms and basis of pricing.

The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the related parties a defined thereunder (whether such
related party(ies) is a party to the aforesaid transactions or not), shall not
vote to approve resolutions under this Item No. 4.

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
and their relatives except Mr. Mayank Shah, Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company being interested in the said resolution as set out
atitemno. 4 ofthe notice.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution set outatItem No. 4 of
the Notice for approval by the Members by way of an Ordinary
Resolution.

Item No. 5:

The Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Board have reviewed and recommended payment of professional fees to
Mr. Ashish Kumar Kachawa, Non-Executive Directorfor availing
Management and Business consultancy services in the professional
capacity. As per Section 188(1)(d) of Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 17(6)(a) of the SEBI Listing Regulation, 2015 all fees or
compensation paid to any Non-Executive Director including
Independent Director shall require approval of the share holders of the
Company. The said approval shall be effective from April 01, 2023 for a
period of1 year.

The key details as required under Rule 15 of the Companies (Meeting of
Board and its power) Rules,2014 are as follows:

1.Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Mr. Ashish Kumar
Kachawa, Non-Executive Director.

2. Nature, duration and material terms and particulars of the
arrangement

Name ofthe party | Purpose Duration
Mr. Ashish Kumar Payment of professional fees for 1-yearw.e.f.
Kachawa rendering managementand 01.04.2023

business consultancy services

in professional capacity.

Any advance paid or received for the arrangement: NA

4. Manner of determining the pricing and other commercial terms: On
arm’s length basis, as faras possible and in line with market price.

5. Any other information relevant or important for the members to
make a decision on the proposed transactions: None

Mr. Ashish Kumar Kachawa is concerned or interested in the resolution,
financially or otherwise, to the extent of the professional fees paid to him.
No other Director or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their relatives
are deemed to be concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the
resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as setoutatitemno. 5in
the Notice for approval by the members.

Item No.6:

The Board of Directors has re-appointed Mr. Mayank Shah, as Chairman
and Managing Director from March 02, 2024 to March 01, 2029 of the
Company on the terms and conditions including Remuneration as
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company in their meetingheld on August 14, 2023.

Mr. Mayank Shah is the Promoter and contributor to the growth and
development of the Company and he is perfect in the execution of Mission
and Vision of the Company.

During his tenure, the Company has achieved decent growth. He is
responsible for overall strategic planning and business development of
the Company. Head of Departments of Sales, Marketing, Productions,
Quality, Audit, HR, Finance & Accounts and other departments reports to
him on daily basis.

In terms of section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has

received a notice in writing from a member for proposing the
candidature of Mr. Mayank Shah to be re-appointed as Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Mayank Shah satisfies all the conditions set outin Part-I of Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendments thereto) and
also the conditions as set out under sub-section (3) of section 196 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for being eligible for re-appointment. The Company
has received his consent to act as Chairman and Managing Director and
disclosure for non-disqualification/ debarment by any Statutory
Authority.

Details of Mr. Mayank Shah are provided in the “Annexure A” to the Notice
pursuant to the provisions of (i) the Listing Regulations and (ii)
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2"), issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India. Mr. Mayank Shah being appointee
together with his relatives may be deemed to be concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise in the said resolution.

The re-appointment of Mr. Mayank Shah (DIN: 01850199) as Chairman
and Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) years w.e.f.
March 02,2024 to March 01,2029 on the following terms and conditions:

(I) BASIC SALARY: X7,50,000/- (Rupees Seven Lakhs and Fifty
Thousand only) per month with such annual increase as may be
decided by the Board (which includes the committee thereof) from
time to time.

(I1) PERFORMANCE LINKED INCENTIVE: Such amount as may be
considered appropriate from time to time and approved by the Board
of Directors, for each financial year. The payment may be made on a
pro-rata basis monthly/quarterly/half yearly or on an annual basis at
the discretion of the Board. There will be performance-based
incentive/Commission for in each financial year which will be paid to
Mr. Mayank Shah as decided by Board.

(III) PERQUISITES: In addition to salary, the following Perquisites
not exceeding the overall ceiling prescribed under schedule V,
annexed to the Companies Act, 2013 will be provided to the Chairman
and Managing Director.

(A) CATEGORY:
(i) House Rent Allowance (HRA) and Special Allowance: HRA at the
rate of 30% of the Total Salary and Special allowance at the rate of
20% of the Total Salary. In addition, the expenditure incurred on
furnishings, repairs/ upkeep and maintenance, society charges and
utilities (Ex. gas, fuel, electricity, water charges, etc.) of residential
accommodation shall be reimbursed on actual basis. If housing
accommodation provided by company, then no HRA will be payable
during thatperiod.

(ii) Medical Expenses Reimbursement: Reimbursement of expenses
actually incurred for selfand family and /or allowance will be paid as
decided by the Board from time to time.

(iii) Club Fees: Fees payable subject to a maximum of two clubs. This will
notinclude admission and life membership fees.

(iv) Leave Travel Concession: For selfand family including dependents,
onceinayear,as decided by the Board from time to time.

)
(B)

Personal Accident Insurance: As per the rules of the Company.
CATEGORY:

In addition to the perquisites, Mr. Mayank Shah shall also be entitled
to the following benefits, which shall not be included in the
computation of ceiling on remuneration mentioned above, as
permissible by law:
(i) Contribution to Provident Fund/ Superannuation Fund or
Annuity Fund: Contribution to Provident Fund/ Superannuation
Fund or Annuity Fund will be on his Basic Salary and will not be
included in the computation of ceiling on perquisites to the extent
these, either singly or put together, are not taxable under the Income
Tax Act,1961.
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(ii) Gratuity: Gratuity payable shall not exceed half a month’s basic
salary for each completed year of services

(iii) Leave and Leave Encashment: Leave and Leave Encashmentas per
therules ofthe Company

(C) CATEGORY:

(i) Conveyance: The following shall notbe included in the computation
of perquisites -

(a) Provision of Company’s Car with driver for official use.
(b) Provision of or reimbursement towards telecommunication

facilities including internet/ broadband connectivity, etc. at office
andresidence.

Explanation(s):

(a) The said perquisites and allowances shall be evaluated, wherever
applicable, as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
rules framed there under or any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof. In the absence of any such rules, perquisites
and allowances shall be evaluated at actual cost. Income Tax along
with surcharge and/or cess thereon in respect of above
remuneration shall be deducted at source as per the governing
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and rules made thereunder.

(b) The Company’s contribution to provident fund, pension,
superannuation fund or annuity fund to the extent these either
singly or put together are not taxable under the Income Tax Act,
1961, gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month’s salary
for each completed year of service and encashment of leave at the
end of the tenure, as per the relevant rules of the Company, shall not
be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration as
prescribed under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended from time to time.

(c) For the purpose of payment of gratuity, Company’s contribution to
superannuation fund and leave encashment benefits, the services of
Mr. Mayank Shah will be considered continuous service with the
Company from the date he joined the company or this Company in
any capacity from time to time and termination of the Agreement
followed by immediate renewal(s) thereof or execution of a fresh

Agreement, will notbe considered as any breakin service.

(d) The Managing Director shall be entitled to be paid/reimbursed by
the Company all travelling, boarding and lodging during business
trips, business promotion and other out-of-pocket expenses, costs,
charges and expenses as may be incurred by him for the purpose of
Company’s work or on behalf of the Company or as may be approved
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/or the Board.
Expenses including travelling, and lodging relating to spouse
accompanying on any official domestic and overseas trip or other
facilities, if any, shall be dealt with in accordance with the practices
and rules of the Company as applicable from time to time. The
Managing Director would also be entitled to any other benefits or
privileges as per Personnel Policies of the Company including but
not limited to Social/House loan(s) as per related Rules of the
Company as applicable from time to time.

(ii) Telephone: Free telephone facility as residence. Personal long-
distance calls be billed by the Company.

(iii) Reimbursement of Expenses: Apart from the remuneration as
aforesaid, Mr. Mayank Shah, Chairman and Managing Director shall

Date: August 14, 2023
Place: Jaipur

be entitled to reimbursement such expenses as are genuinely and
actually incurred in efficient discharge of his duties in connection
with the business of the Company.

(iv) Sitting Fees etc.: No sitting fees shall be paid to Mayank Shah,
Chairman and Managing Director for attending the meetings of
Board of Directors or any committee thereof.

(v) Retireby Rotation: He shall notbeliable to retire by rotation.

(vi) Where in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits
are inadequate, the foregoing amount of remuneration and benefits
shall be paid to Mr. Mayank Shah, Chairman and Managing Director
subject to the applicable provisions of Schedule V of the Companies
Act,2013.

(IV) OTHER TERMS & CONDITIONS:
(i) Mr. Mayank Shah will perform the duties and exercise the powers,
which from time to time may be assigned to or vested in him by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

(ii) Ifatany time, Mr. Mayank Shah ceases to be Director of the Company
for any reason whatsoever, he shall cease to be the Chairman and
Managing Director.

(iii) The terms and conditions as above including remuneration, may be
altered/ varied from time to time by the Board of Directors as it may,
in its absolute discretion, deem fit within the maximum amount
payable to the appointee in accordance with Schedule V annexed to
the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time or
any other relevant statutory enactment(s) thereof in this regard
subject to that the same as provided in the said resolution. None of
the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and
their relatives except Mrs. Sweta Shah, Executive Director of the
Company beinginterested in the said resolution as set outatitem no.
6 ofthe Notice.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution as set out at item no. 6 in
the Notice for approval by the members

Item No. 7:

As per Regulation 17(6)(e)(ii) of SEBI (LODR) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018, the fees or compensation payable to executive
directors who are promoters or members of the promoter group, shall be
subject to the approval of the shareholders by special resolution in
general meeting, if-

There is more than one such director; the aggregate annual remuneration
to such directors exceeds 5 per cent of the net profitsof the listed entity.

Mr. Mayank Shah, Chairman and Managing Director, promoter and Mrs.
Sweta Shah, Executive Director, member of the promoter group of the
Company. The Consent of the Members is required to approve
remuneration payable to them which may be more than 5% of the net
profits of the Company in a yearin aggregate, calculated as per the
provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
and their relatives except Mr. Mayank Shah, Chairman and Managing
Director and Mrs. Sweta Shah, Executive Director of the Company being
interested in the said resolution as set outatitemno. 7 of the notice.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution set outat Item No. 7 of
the Notice for approval by the Members by way of a Special Resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Global Surfaces Limited

Aseem Sehgal

(Company Secretary and Compliance Officer)

ACS 55690

PA-10-006 Engineering and related Indus SEZ, Mahindra world city
Teh- Sanganer, Jaipur Rajasthan 302037
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Annexure- A

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment/appointment at 32ndAnnual General Meeting (AGM) pursuant to Regulation36(3) of the Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Listing Regulations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings issued

by ICSI.

0]

Name ofthe Director: Mr. Ashish Kumar Kachawa
Age: 44 Years

Date of first Appointment on the Board: 11-02-2020

Designation:

Non-Executive Director

BriefResume:

He holds a Bachelors’ Degree in Commerce (2001) from University of
Jodhpur. He has worked as a Business Consultant in the past and has
subsequently worked as a Marketing Manager in Basecase General
Trading LLC, Dubai, UAE. He is associated with Global Surfaces FZE and
Vyom Impex Goods Wholesalers L.L.C (UAE) as adirector.

Expertise in specific functional area:

Building Strategic Alliances

Qualification: Bachelors’ Degree in Commerce
Experience: 10 Years

Terms and conditions of appointment/Reappointment: Liable toretire by rotation
Remuneration drawn in the Company for the FY 2022-23: Nil

Remuneration sought to be paid:

He shall be entitled for payment of professional fees as approved by the
Shareholders.

Directorship in other Executive Director liable to retire by listed Companies Nil
asonMarch31,2023:

Member/Chairman of the Committees of the Board of other listed Companies: | Nil

Directorship in other Public Companies as on March 31,2023: Nil
Member/Chairman of the Committees of the Board of other Public Companies:| Nil

No.ofshares held in Company: Nil

Relationship between the directors and KMP’s inter se: NotApplicable
No. of meetings of the Board attended during the year (FY 2022-2023) 3 (Three)

(ii)

Name of the Director: Mr. Mayank Shah
Age: 45 Years

Date of first Appointment on the Board: 24th December, 2004

Designation:

Chairman and Managing Director

BriefResume:

He is commerce graduate and widely recognized for path braking and
visionary contributions. He has excellent entrepreneur skills.

Expertise in specific functional area:

He is an expert in the Business Management, Administration, Global
Business, Strategy planning, leadership/operational experience.

Qualification:

Bachelors’ degree in Commerce

Experience:

18 Years

Terms and conditions of Appointment/Reappointment:

Director notliable to retire by rotation

Remuneration drawn in the Company for the FY2022-23:

Rs.19.02 million

Remunerations ought to be paid:

Directorship in otherlisted Companies as on March 31,2023: Nil

Member/Chairman of the Committees of the Board of other listed Companies: | Nil

Directorship in other Public Companiesas on March 31,2023: Nil

Member/Chairman of the Committees of the Board of other Public Companies:| Nil

No.ofshares held in Company: 23,506,368

Relationship between the directorsand KMP’s in terse: Spouse of Mrs. Sweta Shah, Executive Director
No. of meetings of the Board attended during The year (FY2022-2023) 10 (Ten)

Important Communication to the Members

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by allowing paperless compliances by the Companies and

has issued circulars stating that service of notice/ documents including Annual Report can be sent by email to its members. To support this Green

Initiative of the Government in full measure, members who have not registered their email addresses, so far, are requested to register their email

addresses. Inrespectofelectronicholdingwithdepositorythroughconcerneddepositoryparticipants.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

GLOBAL SURFACES LIMITED (formerly known as Global Stones Private Limited)

Reporton the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of
GLOBAL SURFACES LIMITED (formerly known as Global Stones
Private Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
inIndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2023, and its
profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
forthe year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in

accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

S. No. Key Audit Matters Auditors’ response
1 Inventory of Raw material and Finished Goods | Withrespecttothe netrealisable value:
(valuation) o Obtained an understanding of the determination of the net realizable values of

Finished goods inventory are valued at lower of cost
and net realizable value (estimated selling price less
estimated cost to sell) and raw material are written
down below cost where itis estimated that the cost of
finished products produced from such raw material
will exceed their netrealisable value. Considering the
nature of finished goods and raw materials which is
dependent upon various market conditions and
evaluating possible impact of quality, class, size and
ageing, determination of the net realizable value for
finished goods and raw material involves significant
management judgement and therefore has been
considered as akey audit matter.

natural stone and engineered quartz slabs and assessed and tested the
reasonableness of the significantjudgements applied by the management;

Evaluating the physical condition of the raw material, its cost and yield vis a vis
market price of the finished goods likely to be produced from such raw
material;

Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to the valuation of raw
material and finished goods and also tested the operating effectiveness of the
aforesaid controls;

Assess the reasonableness of the net realisable value considering the market
condition and evaluating possible impact of quality, class, size and ageing that
was estimated and considered by the management;

Compared the actual costs incurred to sell based on the latest sale transactions
to assess the reasonableness of the cost to sell that was estimated and
considered by the management;

Compared the cost of the finished goods with the estimated net realisable
value and checked if the finished goods were recorded at net realisable value
where the cost was higher than the netrealisable value;

Tested the appropriateness of the disclosure in the standalone financial
statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.
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S. No. Key Audit Matters Auditors’ response
IT systems and controls over financial reporting Our procedures included and were not limited to the following:
We identified IT systems and controls over financial | ¢ Assessed the complexity of the IT environment by engaging IT specialists and
reporting as a key audit matter for the Company through discussion with the management and identified IT applications that
because its financial accounting and reporting arerelevantto our audit.
systems are fundamentally reliant on IT systems and |, Asgessed the design and evaluation of the operating effectiveness of IT general
IT controls to process significant transaction controls over program development and changes, access to program and data
volumes, specifically with respect to consumption of flow between IT applications interface by engaging IT specialists.
raw materials and consumables, production of . . . .
. X e Assessed the design and evaluation of the operating effectiveness of IT
finished goods and Sales. Automated accounting o . . . . . .
. . . . . application controls in the key processes impacting financial reporting of the
procedures which include integration of financial . T
. e . Company by engaging IT specialists.
transaction between IT applications interface and
timely identification of gaps and taking corrective | ° Performed GAP analysis of integration issues between IT applications
actions thereon are required to be designed and to interface and theirimpact on financial reporting.
operate effectively to ensure accurate financial | e Evaluated the appropriateness of corrective actions taken by management to
reporting. resolve the integration issues and its corresponding financial impact.
Other Information The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s

The Company’s Board of Directors isresponsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The other information comprising the above documents is
expected to be made available to us after the date of thisauditors’ report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the
other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information comprising the above documents, if
we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance
and take necessary actions as per applicable laws and regulations.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS)specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realisticalternative butto do so.

financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Wealso:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude thata material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the Standalone financial statements of the current year and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
publicinterest benefits of such communication

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the“Annexure-A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

B. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we
reportthat:

a) Wehave soughtand obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have

been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our

examination of those books.

c) the Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flows and Standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books

ofaccounts.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act,

read withrelevantrules made thereunder.
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the
directors as on March 31,2023, taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on March
31,2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) ofthe Act.
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

“Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s

Reportin accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of
the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the
yearisinaccordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

h

[\t

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on
its financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer
Note48 to the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts hence, the question of any material
foreseeablelosses does notarise;

iii. No amount isrequired to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company

. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge andbelief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
thelike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year
and therefore compliance of Section 123 of the Act, isnotapplicable.
vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the
Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting
under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is

notapplicable for the financial year ended March 31,2023.

For B. Khosla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000205C

(Sandeep Mundra)

Partner

Membership No: 075482

UDIN: 23075482BGWNGD5646

Place: Jaipur
Date: May 29, 2023
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in Paragraph A under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Global Surfaces

Limited (formerly known as Global Surfaces Limited)of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations

provided to us by the Company and the books of account and records

examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i.

iii.

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets:

(@) (A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment.(B) The Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) All the Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically
verified by the management during the year. There is a regular
programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its
Property, Plant and Equipment. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than
properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed
in the standalone financial statements are held in the name of
the Company

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets
during the year. Hence reporting under clause 3 (i) (d) of the
Orderisnotapplicable.

(e) As informed by the management, no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2023for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended
2016) and rules made thereunder. Hence reporting under clause
3 (i) (e)isnotapplicable.

(a) As per the information furnished, the Inventories have been
physically verified by the management at the year-end. In our
opinion, having regard to the size, nature and location of inventory,
the coverage and procedure of such verification by the managementis
appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for
each class of inventory were noticed on suchverification.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of
security of current assets. As per the information and explanation
given to us the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company
with banks are not in agreement with the books of accounts of the
Company as disclosed in the Note 25 of the standalone financial
statement.

As required under clause 3(iii) of the Order, the relevant details to the extent applicable in respect of the investments, guarantee and/or loans or

advancesin the nature ofloans, secured or unsecured, made by the Company during the year to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any

other partiesis givenasunder: -

(a) Theaggregateamountduring the year,and balance outstandingatthe balance sheet date with respectto suchloans givenare asunder:

Particulars Guarantees (INRin millions) | Securities (INRinmillions) | Loans (unsecured) | Advancesinnature ofloans
(Refer Note Below) (Refer Note Below) (INRin millions) (INRin millions)
Aggregateamount granted/
provided during the year
- Subsidiaries 1,000.00 1,000.00 117.44 49.46
- Others - - - -
Balance Outstandingas
atbalance sheetdate
- Subsidiaries 1,000.00 1,000.00 117.44 63.43
- Others - - 16.02 -

Note: The UAE subsidiary viz. Global Surfaces FZE has availed term loan/letter of credit facilities limit for its project in Dubai against which the Company

has provided security of its property, plant and equipment, current assets and guarantee to the banks. The amount mentioned herein is the total limit

sanctioned in thisregard.

(b) Inouropinion,theinvestments made, guarantee provided, security given andthe terms and conditions of grant of loans and advances in the nature of

@]

(d

(e)

loans and guarantee providedare prima facie,not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

Inrespect ofloans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments

of principal amounts and receipts of interest (either by way of payment or by conversion into further loan in terms of agreement) are generally been

regularas per stipulation. However, as at the year end, an amount of Rs. 63.43 million which has been shown as “Advance to Subsidiaries” (Refer Note

No. 19) for which no terms and condition for repayment has been stipulated.

sheetdate.

given to the same parties.

Inrespect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount of principal for more than 90 days remaining outstanding as at the balance

The loans which has fallen due during the year, have not been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans

(f) The Company has notgranted any loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment exceptas under:
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Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties
Aggregate amount ofloans/ advances in nature ofloans
-Repayable on demand (A) - - -
- Agreementdoes not specify any terms or period of repayment (B) - - 63.43
Total (A+B) - - 63.43
Percentage ofloans/ advances in nature of loans to the total loans - - 32.22

(iv) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and

186 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 inrespect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, where applicable.

(v) The Company has notaccepted any depositoramounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or

any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) is notapplicable.

(vi) As per information and explanation given to us by the management, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records

under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the goods produced by the Company. Hence reporting under clause 3(vi) of the orderis notapplicable.

(vii) Accordingto theinformationand explanations given to us, inrespectofstatutory dues:

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Goods and

Services Tax (GST), Income Tax, Duty of Custom, Value added tax, Cess and other statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate

authorities,

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax,

Service Tax, duty of Custom, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of

more than six months from the date they became payable except TDS demand of INR0O.65million for which appropriate details/reasons is yet

tobeinquired.
(b) Details of statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax and Income Tax which have not been deposited as on March 31,2023 on account of

disputesareasunder:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amountin Period to which the Forum where dispute
INR (Millions) amountrelates ispending
Income tax Act, 1961 Income tax 43.78 Block Period from CIT(Appeals), Kolkata
AY2013-2014to AY 2021-22
Income tax Act, 1961 Income tax 1.69 AY 2013-2014 Matter pertaining to deposition of advance
taxin wronghead isreferred to Grievance Cell
CGST Act, 2017 GST 0.15 2017 Additional Commissioner
(Appeals), Jaipur

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and

(ix)

records examined by us, there are no transactions that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.Hence, reporting
under clause 3(viii) is notapplicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and
records examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interestthereon toanylenderasatthe Balance Sheet date.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and
records examined by us, the Company has not been declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.Hence,
reporting under clause 3 (ix) (b)isnotapplicable.

(c) Based on our examinations of the records and information and
explanations given to us, the term loanshave been applied for the
purpose for which these areraised.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not
been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person onaccount of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) Based on our examinations of the records and information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not raised loans during
the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.Hence,

(69

(1)

reporting under clause 3 (ix) (f) isnotapplicable.

(a) In our opinion and according to information and explanations
given to us, the company in the month of March, 2023 raised money
by way of initial public offer (IPO) which remained unutilized as at
the year end and the unutilized fund amounting to INR 1,015.78
million was available under fixed depositsand bank balances with
monitoring agency as at March 31, 2023. The Company has not
raised moneys by way further public offer (includingdebt
instruments) during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations give to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) isnotapplicable.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company
hasbeennoticed orreported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year.

(c) As represented and based on our examination of records made
available to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year. Hence
reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) isnotapplicable.
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(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xii) isnotapplicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
transactionswith related parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
anddetails of such transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) (a)In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does
not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an
internal audit system for the financial year 2022-2023 as per
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(xiv) (a) and (b) is notapplicable.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(xv) isnotapplicable.

(xvi) (a) TheCompany is not required to be registered under Section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) isnotapplicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no Core Investment Company within the
Group and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) is not
applicable.

(xvii) The Company has notincurred cash losses during the financial year
covered by our auditand the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the
year; hencereporting under clause 3(xviii) isnotapplicable.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence

(xx)

supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on
the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheetdate.

We however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given
to us, there is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects for the
financial year 2022-2023. The unspent amount towards Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects for the
financial year 2021-22 has been transferred to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Actwithin the period of six months
from the date of expiry of financial year 2021-2022, in compliance
with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act.
The Company has not undertaken any ongoing project towards its
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) obligation.

For B. Khosla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000205C

(Sandeep Mundra)

Partner

Membership No: 075482

UDIN: 23075482BGWNGD5646

Place: Jaipur
Date: May 29, 2023
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph B(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

TO THE MEMBERS OF GLOBAL SURFACES LIMITED (formerly known
as Global Stones Private Limited)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
GLOBAL SURFACES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March, 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing as
specified prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial control system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
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pertain to the maintenance of records, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on theinternal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

Broadly, the Company is having most of the system in place as required
for the compliance of Internal Financial Control on Financial Reporting.
However, the Company has not documented adequately the internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Based on our audit
procedures, we are of the opinion that Company has rectified all material
observations of our audit on internal financial controls over financial
reporting to ensure that they do not significantly affect financial
reporting on Internal Financial Control as on Balance Sheet date.

For B. Khosla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000205C

(Sandeep Mundra)

Partner

Membership No: 075482

UDIN: 23075482BGWNGD5646

Place: Jaipur
Date: May 29, 2023
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Global Surfaces Limited (formerly known as Global Stones Private Limited)

Standalone Balance Sheet
as at the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
ASSETS
Non-currentassets
Property, plantand equipment 3 380.28 385.13
Capital work-in-progress 4 - 55.77
Right-of-use assets 5 92.31 93.07
Investment properties 6 - -
Intangible assets 7 0.25 0.41
Financial assets
i.Investments 8 202.03 15.22
ii. Loans 9 117.74 19.94
iii. Other financial assets 10 9.18 9.60
Income tax assets (net) 20.24 1.45
Deferred taxassets (net) 11 216.70 180.34
Other non-currentassets 12 9.68 19.92
Total non-currentassets 1,048.41 780.85
Currentassets
Inventories 13 439.58 469.14
Financial assets
i. Investments 14 57.19 106.63
ii. Trade receivables 15 445.34 391.71
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 16 59.45 4.22
iv. Bank balances other than (iii) above 17 1,070.80 5.93
v.Loans 18 18.64 92.30
vi. Other financial assets 19 85.11 20.36
Other current assets 20 23.75 71.44
Total current assets 2,199.86 1,161.74
Total assets 3,248.27 1,942.59
EQUITYAND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 21(a) 423.82 338.62
Other equity
Reservesand surplus 21(b) 2,179.41 997.78
Total equity 2,603.23 1,336.40
LIABILITIES
Non-currentliabilities
Financial liabilities
i.Borrowings 22 66.36 107.92
ii. Lease liabilities 23 5.84 6.69
Provisions 24 5.06 3.83
Total non-currentliabilities 77.26 118.44
Currentliabilities
Financialliabilities
i.Borrowings 25 368.12 264.90
ii. Trade payables 26
a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprise 66.25 105.77
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than (ii) (a) above 92.58 79.26
iii. Other financial liabilities 27 14.54 16.16
Current tax liabilities 28 - 9.18
Provisions 29 1.47 0.42
Other currentliabilities 30 24.82 12.07
Total currentliabilities 567.78 487.76
Total liabilities 645.04 606.20
Total equity and liabilities 3,248.27 1,942.59
The above standalone balance sheet should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
Asperourreportofeven date
For B.KHOSLA & CO. For and onbehalf ofthe Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN:000205C
SANDEEP MUNDRA MAYANK SHAH SWETA SHAH
Partner Managing Director Director
M.No.075482 DIN:01850199 DIN:06883764
Date: May 29,2023 RAJESH GATTANI ASEEM SEHGAL
Place: Jaipur ChiefFinancial Officer Company Secretary
PAN:AWYPG6108R M.No.: A55690
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Global Surfaces Limited (formerly known as Global Stones Private Limited)

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March31,2022”
Income
Revenue from operations 31 1,770.30 1,893.71
Otherincome 32 44.25 85.72
Totalincome 1,814.55 1,979.43
Expenses
Costof materials consumed 33 852.63 986.16
Changes ininventories of finished goods and work- in-progress 34 (8.27) (119.31)
Employee benefit expenses 35 119.36 149.28
Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 93.58 107.77
Finance costs 37 34.98 29.45
Other expenses 38 461.89 467.50
Total expenses 1,554.17 1,620.85
Profitbefore tax 260.38 358.58
Tax expense
- Currenttax 39 46.12 64.06
- Deferred tax (36.48) (60.08)
Total tax expense 9.64 3.98
Profit for the year 250.74 354.60
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profitorloss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 45 0.43 1.03
Income tax relating to above 39 (0.12) (0.29)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.31 0.74
Total comprehensive income for the year 251.05 355.34
Earnings per equity share (inINR)
Basicearnings per share 47 7.34 10.47
Diluted earnings per share 47 7.34 10.47
The above standalone statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.

Asperourreportofevendate

For B.KHOSLA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:000205C

SANDEEP MUNDRA
Partner
M.No.075482

Date: May 29,2023
Place: Jaipur

Forand onbehalf ofthe Board of Directors

MAYANK SHAH SWETA SHAH
Managing Director Director
DIN:01850199 DIN:06883764
RAJESH GATTANI ASEEM SEHGAL
ChiefFinancial Officer Company Secretary

PAN:AWYPG6108R M.No.:A55690
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Global Surfaces Limited (formerly known as Global Stones Private Limited)

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended March 31, 2023

A.Equity share capital

(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Financial Statements

Particulars Amount

AsatApril 01,2021 64.50

Changes in equity share capital (bonusissue) 27412

AsatMarch 31,2022 338.62

Changes in equity share capital 85.20

AsatMarch 31,2023 423.82

B. Other equity

Particulars Reserves and surplus Total other equity

Securities premium Retained earnings

AsatApril 01,2021 172.30 745.52 917.82
Profit for the year 354.60 354.60
Other comprehensive income - 0.74 0.74
Total comprehensive income for the year - 355.34 355.34
Adjustmentonaccountofissue of bonus shares (274.12) (274.12)
Shareissue expenses - (1.26) (1.26)
BalanceasatMarch 31,2022 172.30 825.48 997.78
Profit for the year - 250.74 250.74
Other comprehensive income - 0.31 0.31
Total comprehensive income for the year - 251.05 251.05
Securities premium on issue of shares 1,107.60 - 1,107.60
Shareissue expenses (177.02) - (177.02)
BalanceasatMarch 31,2023 1,102.88 1,076.53 2,179.41

The above standalone statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.

For B.KHOSLA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:000205C

SANDEEP MUNDRA
Partner
M.No.075482

Date: May 29,2023
Place: Jaipur

For and onbehalf ofthe Board of Directors

MAYANK SHAH
Managing Director
DIN:01850199

RAJESH GATTANI
ChiefFinancial Officer
PAN:AWYPG6108R

SWETA SHAH
Director
DIN:06883764

ASEEM SEHGAL
Company Secretary
M.No.:A55690
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Global Surfaces Limited (formerly known as Global Stones Private Limited)

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Financial Statements

A. Cashflowsfrom operatingactivities
Profitbefore tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciationand amortisation
Interestand other finance costs
(Reversal)/ provision for Expected creditloss
Interestincome
Gain on sale and revaluation of Mutual Funds
Unrealised (gain)/loss
Netloss/(gain) ondisposal of property, plantand equipment
Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in working capital:
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables
Increase in other current financial and non financial liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in other financial and non-financial assets
Decrease/(increase) ininventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
Cash generated from operations
Taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash inflow from operating activities
B. Cashflowsfrominvestingactivities
Loanrecovered during the year
Loan given during the year
Payments for property, plantand equipmentand intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand equipment
Purchase of investments in subsidiary
Proceeds/(Purchase) of investments in Mutual Funds
Bank deposits (placed) /matured during the year
Interestreceived
Net cash (outflow) ininvesting activities
C. Cashflows from financingactivities
Proceeds fromissue of equity shares (net of issue expenses)
Shareissue expenses
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) borrowings
Repayment oflease liabilities
Interestand other finance costs paid
Net cash inflow/(outflow) in financing activities
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the standalone statement of cash flow
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following (refer note 16):
Balances with banks
In currentaccounts
Cashonhand
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Netdebtreconciliation:

Particulars

Borrowings (including interestaccrued)
NetDebt

Particulars

Opening Balance

Proceeds/(repayment) of borrowings
Interest expense recorded in profitand loss
Interest paid in cash

Unrealized foreign exchange
Interestaccrued onlease liabilities
Closing Balance

Notes:

1. The Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set outin Ind AS 7 on Statement of cash flows notified under Section 133 of The Companies Act 2013, read together with

Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 (as amended).

2. Purchase of property, plantand equipment includes movements of capital work-in-progress (including capital advances and creditors for capital goods) during the year.

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
260.38 358.58
93.58 107.77

34.98 29.45
(0.08) 1.72
(17.59) (5.58)
(0.62) (3.13)
(12.46) 2.29
0.07 (20.86)
358.26 470.23
2.74 (2.47)
(26.17) 24.70
9.18 4.42

0.58 (26.32)

29.56 (122.65)
(46.40) 9.08
327.75 357.00
(74.09) (81.55)
253.66 275.45
73.66 -
(97.80) (89.93)
(32.29) (107.49)

- 22.77

(186.82) (15.22)
50.06 (103.50)
(1,064.87) 4.78
13.63 5.58
(1,244.43) (282.99)
1,015.78 -

- (1.26)

63.95 (3.85)
(0.38) (0.00)
(33.35) (29.34)
1,046.00 (34.46)
55.23 (42.00)

4.22 46.22

59.45 4.22
58.21 2.06

1.24 2.16

59.45 4.22

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
436.18 372.89
436.18 372.89
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
372.89 374.96
63.95 (3.85)
34.98 29.45
(33.35) (29.34)
(2.29) 2.08

- (0.40)

436.18 372.89

The above standalone statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.

For B.KHOSLA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:000205C

SANDEEP MUNDRA
Partner
M.No.075482

Date: May 29,2023
Place: Jaipur

For and onbehalf of the Board of Directors

MAYANK SHAH
Managing Director
DIN:01850199

RAJESH GATTANI
ChiefFinancial Officer
PAN:AWYPG6108R

SWETA SHAH
Director
DIN:06883764

ASEEM SEHGAL

Company Secretary

M.No.: A55690
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Global Surfaces Limited (formerly known as Global Stones Private Limited)

Notes to standalone financial statements

as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Background

Global Surfaces Limited (‘the Company’) is a limited Company. It is
incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at
Mahindra World City, Sanganer, Jaipur-302037.

"The Company is incorporated since August 23, 1991 and is engaged
primarily in the business of manufacturing of quartz and processing of
granite and marble. The company has been converted from a private
limited company to a public company on October 21,2021. The Company
got listed on National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange on
March 23,2023.

These standalone financial statements were authorized to be issued by
the Board of Directors on May 29,2023."

Note 1: Basis of preparation and Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to
time.

(b) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for the following:

(a) certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value;
and

(b) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value"
(c) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of standalone financial statement requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

» Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets— Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets at each reporting date, based
on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates
relate to technical and economy obsolescence that may change the utility
of property, plantand equipmentand intangible assets.

o Estimation of defined benefit obligation -  Estimation of defined
benefit obligation - Measurement of defined benefit obligation and
related under plans require numerous assumptions and estimates that
can have a significantimpact on the recognized costs and obligation, such
as future salarylevel, discountrate, attrition rate and mortality.

e Impairment of trade receivable: The loss allowances for financial assets
are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation

« Estimation of net realisable value for raw material and finished goods:
The management has determined net realisable value of finished goods
and raw material based on the analysis of physical conditions, ageing,
technology, and market conditions to determine excess or obsolete

(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)
inventories.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(d) Segmentreporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
(CODM).

The Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as being the
CODM as they assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company, and makes strategic decisions. Refer Note 46 for segment
information.

(e) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Itemsincluded in the standalone financial statements of the Company are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The standalone
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the
functional and presentation currency of the Company.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. A monetary item for which
settlementis neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future
is considered as a part of the entity's net investment in that foreign
operation.

(iii) Group Companies
"The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a

functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

« assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet

¢ income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions), and

¢ all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of
any net investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to statement of profit and loss, as
partofthe gain orloss on sale.

(f) Revenue recognition

"Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer which is generally on dispatch of goods
and/or on the date of clearance by Customs and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the goods. The
Company recognizes revenue from the sale of goods measured at the
price specified in the contract, net of returns and allowances, trade
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discounts and volume rebates.

Revenue from value added services, namely freight and shipping
insurance, is recognised as and when services are rendered, as per the
terms agreed with the customers. Shipping and handling expenses have
been netted off while recognition of revenue.

The Company does not have any significant financing elementincluded in
the salesmade."

(g) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(i) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. The
provision for current tax is made at the rate of tax as applicable for the
income of the previous year as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts as per standalone financial
statements as at the reporting date. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted forifitarises frominitial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income taxliability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable income will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards
and unused tax credits could be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to
berecovered.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in associate
where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent thatitrelates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax (" MAT ") credit entitlement is recognized as

deferred tax asset if it is probable that MAT credit will reverse in
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax can be utilised.

(h) Leases
Asalessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the lease commencement date. Contracts may contain both
lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on theirrelative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. liabilities include the net present value of the
followinglease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value
guarantees

« the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and

« payments penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the Company exercisingan option to terminate the lease.”

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options
are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Company, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use assetin a
similar economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

'e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Company, which not have
recent third party financing, and

» makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and
security.”

The Company is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, which are notincluded in
the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right—of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
theliability for each period.

Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments
occurs.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
"e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
incentivesreceived

e any initial direct costs,and

e restoration costs."
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Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in the
production of finished products are not written down below cost except
in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the
costofthe finished products will exceed their netrealisable value.

(n) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of
one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company
becomes aparty to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets:
Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profitorloss),and

e those measured atamortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Initial recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sale
the financial asset. Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profitorloss are expensed of in profit orloss.

Subsequent measurement
Afterinitial recognition, financial assets are measured at:

e fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through
profitorloss),or

eamortised cost
Debtinstruments

Debt instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or fair value
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL) till de-recognition on the basis of (i) the
entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and (ii) the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at amortised cost and not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised
or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
otherincome using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Assets thatare held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in
otherincome using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profitorloss (FVTPL):

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is

subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in profitorlossin the period in which itarises. Interestincome from these
financial assets are recognised in other income.

Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value.
Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL.
For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the
same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) or FVTPL.

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument
basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and isirrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI,
then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no recycling of
the amounts from OCI to profitand loss, even on sale of such investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at
fair value with all changes recognised in the standalone statement of
profitandloss.

Investmentin equity instruments of subsidiaries

"The Company records the investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointventuresatcost.

When the Company issues financial guarantees on behalf of subsidiaries,
initially it measures the financial guarantees at their fair values and
subsequently measures at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amountrecognized less cumulative amortization.

The Company records the initial fair value of financial guarantee as
deemed investment with a corresponding liability recorded as deferred
revenue. Such deemed investment is added to the carrying amount of
investmentin subsidiaries.

Deferred revenue is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over
the remaining period of financial guarantee issued.

Impairmentof financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk. Note 41 details how the Company
determines whether there hasbeen a significantincrease in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach
permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets
Afinancial assetis derecognized only when:

¢ the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset or

e retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
asset, butassumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or
morerecipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates
whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not
derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of
the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial
asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvementin the financial asset.
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Income recognition
Interestincome

Interestincome from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
disclosed as interest income within other income. Interest income on
financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is
calculated using the effective interest rate method and recognised in the
standalone statement of profitand loss as part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance)

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit
orloss when the right to receive paymentis established. Thisapplies even
ifthey are paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly a
recovery partofthe cost of the investment.

Otherincome

All other income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant
uncertainty existregarding the amount that will be received.

Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially measured at its fair value plus or minus, in
the case of a financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue/ origination of
the financial liability.

Subsequentmeasurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or
FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held
for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and
netgains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the
standalone statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in the standalone statement of profit
and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the
contractis discharged, cancelled or expires.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offsetand the netamountis reported in
the standalone balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counter party.

(o) Property, plantand equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost comprises of
the purchase price including import duties and non-refundable taxes and
directly attributable expenses incurred to bring the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of being operated in the
manner intended by management.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the

Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated usefullives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the written down value method, to
allocate their cost, net of residual values, over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, based on technical evaluation done by the management's
expert which is in accordance with the Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values
are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided based on the
management estimated useful life for the property, plantand equipment:

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other
income / other expenses.

Transition to Ind AS:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the
carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the
property, plantand equipment

(p) Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, are
classified as investment properties. Investment properties are measured
initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an
investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced
partisderecognised.

Transition to Ind AS:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the
carrying value of all of its investment property measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the
investmentproperty.”

(q) Capital Workin Progress

Expenditure incurred on construction of assets which are not ready for
their intended use are carried at cost less impairment (if any), under
Capital work-in-progress. The cost includes the purchase cost of
materials, including import duties and non-refundable taxes, interest on
borrowings used to finance the construction of the asset and any directly
attributable costs of bringing an assets ready for their intended use

(r) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible
assets are amortised on a written down value basis over their estimated
useful lives.

Depreciation on intangible assets is provided based on the management
estimated useful life for the intangible assets:

The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at
least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is
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Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use assetis depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a Straight-line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items
of office furniture.

Asalessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct cost incurred obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assetsareincluded in the balance sheetbased on their nature.

(i) Business Combination

"The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business
combinations except common control, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred
forthe acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the

« fair values of the assets transferred;
e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;
« equity interests issued by the Company; and

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Company recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess ofthe

e consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling interestin the acquired entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital
reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for
classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other
cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as capital
reserve.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the
amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at
the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or
losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss
or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Business combination between entities under common control is
accounted using pooling of interest method of accounting. Under pooling

of interest method of accounting, assets and liabilities of combining
entities are reflected at carrying amount and no adjustments are made to
reflect fair values, or recognize any new assets and liabilities. The only
adjustments are made to harmonise accounting policies. The difference
between the amount recorded as share capital plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and amount of share
capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented
separately from capital reserve.

(i) Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible that have an indefinite useful life are subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets(cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the standalone statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held a
call with financial institutions, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of less than three months that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificantrisk of changesinvalue.

(1) Tradereceivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customer for sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are
recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective
of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
loss allowance.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are valued atlower of costand estimated net realisable value.
Cost is determined on "First-in-First-Out", "Specific Identification” or
Weighted Averages" basis as applicable. Cost of Inventories comprises of
cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other direct costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of
Finished goods are determined on absorption costing method. Semi
Finished Goods are Finished Goods pending Quality Inspection.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated selling
expenses. [dentification of a specificitem and determination of estimated
net realisable value involves technical judgment of the management,
which hasbeenrelied upon by the Auditors.

The company assess the valuation of Inventories at each reporting period
and write down the value for different finished goods based on their
quality classes and ageing. Inventory provisions are provided to cover
risks arising from slow-moving items, discontinued products, and net
realizable value lower than cost. The process for evaluating these write-
offs often requires to make subjective judgments and estimates, based
primarily on historical experience, concerning prices at which such
inventory will be able to be sold in the normal course of business, to the
extent each of these factorsimpact the Company’s business.
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significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period
is changed accordingly.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other
income / other expenses.

Transition to Ind AS:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the
carrying value of all of its intangible assets measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the intangible
assets."

(s) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to
the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is
notdue within 12 months after the reporting period or operating cycle, as
applicable. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

(t) Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get re